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The Honorable Mayor. Members of the
Municipal Legislature and People of
the Municipality of Corozal
Corozal, Puerto Rico

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the govemmental activities, each

majorfund, and the aggregate rimiining fund information of the Municipality of corozal of the

Coilmonwlartn ot pr.6rto -Rico 
(the "Mu;icipality") as of and for the year ended June 30, 20'10,

wnicn cotteaivery comprise the Municipality's basic financial statements.as Iisted in the table of

contents. Thes; financial statements are the responsibility of the luunicipality's management'

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.

WeconductedourauditinaccordancewithauditingstandardsgenerallyacceptedintheUnited
StatesofAmericaandtheStandardsapplicabletofinancialauditscontainedinGovemment
niiiing standaras issued by the comptro er Generat of the united states Those standards

r"qrir""tt"t we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the

frnanciat statemints are fiee of material misstatement. An audit includes examining on a test

baiis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements An audit

also ]ncludes assessing ihe accounting principles used and significant estimates made by

managJment, as wett aJevaluating the overall financial statements presentation' We believe that

our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

ln our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly' in all material respects'

il"r;6eJr; financial position of the governmental activities, each .major fund, and the-

,gir"-g'Jt" i"r"ining fund information of the Municipality of corozal of the commonwealth of

Fi,""rti' ni"o, as of June 30, 2010, for the year then ended in conformity '/vith accounting

principles generally accepted in the United States of America

lnaccordancewilhGovemmentAuditstandards'wehavealsoissuedourrepoddated
O"""rO"i 17,2O1O on our consideration of the Government's internal control over financial

Lporting ,na'oW t""ts of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts-

"-,iJg;t 
;gt""r"nt and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of

oritiJing 6f internal control over a financial reporting and compliance and the results of that

Gting, 
";d 

not to provide and opinion on the internal control over financial reporting compliance'

ihJ;6;; ii an'integrat part of an audit performed in accordance- wllh Government Audit

Slanda;ds and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit'

INDEPENOENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Malling add€.. aor 757, DoIE(kl, PR 00646



The Management's Discussion and Analysis and the Budgetary Comparison Schedule on page 3

through l iand 55 through 57 are not required parts of the basic financial statements but are

supp6mentary informatian required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United

Staies of America. We have applied certain limited procedures' which consisted principally of

inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the

required supplem;ntary information. However, we did not audit the information and express no

opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that

cotlectively comprise the Municipality of Corozal of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico basic

financial itatements. The introductory section, combining and individual non-majorfund financial

statements, and statistical section are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not

a required part of the basic flnancial statements. The accompanying schedule oI expenditures of

fedeialawards is presented for purposes ofadditional analysis as required by U.S Office of
Management and Budged Circular A-133, Aud,'?s ofStates, Local Governments' and Non-Profit

orga;izations, and is rlso not a required part ofthe basic flnancial statements of l\,ilunicipality of
Coiozal of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, the combining and individual non-majorfund
financial statements and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards have been subjected to

the auditing procedure applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and in our opinion,

are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a

whole. ihe introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and accordingly we express no

opinion on them.

qffi"k1
License 2214 \ I

December '17, 20'10
Toa Baja, Puerto Rico

stamp No. 25794449 of the Puerto Rico Sociely of cerlified Public Accountants w€re affxed to the record copy of this
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COMMONWEAITH OF PUERTO RICO
MIJNICIPALITY OF COROZAL

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

! Our discussion and analysis of the Municipality of Corozal (the Municipality) financial performance provides an

overview of the Municipality's financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010. Please read it in

conjunction with the Municipality's financial statements.

Management of the Municipality of Corozal (the "Municipality") implemented Statemeflt No. 34 ("Statemenf') of
the Civemmental Accounting Standards Board ("GASB"). This Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A)

- is prepared as a result of the requircments of such Statement, and it has been designed accordingly with the

followings goals:

a) Assist the reader in focusing on significant financial issues,

b) Provide an overview ofthe Municipality's financial activity,

- c) ldentiry changes in the Municipality's finalcial position (its ability to address the

next and subsequent year challenges),

d) ldenti& any material deviations fiom the financial plan (the approved budget), and;

e) Identiry individual fund issues ot concems.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
- The Municipality Govemmental Activities net assets increased by $890,540'

The Municipality Business T,?e Activities net assets decrcased by $122,811 due to depreciation charges. The

Busin€ss T)?e Activities revenue from Municipality contributions increased $32,320 or 15%'

- In the ftrnd financial statements, the govemmental revenue decreased $1,774,264 (ot l0%) while govemmental

expenditures decreased $1,634,745 (or 8Yo).

The General Fund Balance (the primary operating fund) reflected, on a current financial resource basis, an increase

of $1,106,196.

- The Joint resolutions Fund, which accounts for PR Govemment restricted gBnts for special purposes, decreased by

$368,464.

The Capital project Fund Balance, which is reserved for major capital expenditures, reflected an increase of

$1,283,419.

- ,n" Debt Service Fund, which is reserved for the long term debt amortizatiofl and related intercst pa]'ment,

deoeased by $488,306.

On a budgetary basis, actual revenues exceeded actual expenditures by $42,790'

- Capital expenalitures for acquisition of vehicles, construction and improvements of recreational facilities. and

infra!'tructure amounted to $4,210,565.

Dudng current year the Municipality issued $4,225,000 in long term debt'
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COMMONWEALTH O-F PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF COROZAL
MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

USING TEIS ANIruAI RIPORT
This annual report consists ofa series ofnew fiflancial statements with a change in the focus from previous financial

statements. The new focus is on both the Municipality as a whole (govemment-wide) and the major individual

funds. Both perspectives (govemment-wide and major fund) allow the user to address relevant questions, broaden a

basis for comparison (year to year or govemment to govemment) and enhance the MuniciPality and its component

unit's accountability.

Reporting th€ Municipality as a Whole
oni of thi most important questions asked abour the Municipaliqy's finances is, "Is the Municipality as a whole

better off or .orse off u, a result of the yea/s activities?" The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of
Activities report information about the Municipality as a whole and about its activities in a way that helps answer

this question. These statements include all assets and liabilities using the accrual basis of accounting, which is

similar to the accounting used by most p vate-sector companies. All ofthe current year's revenues and expenses are

taken into account regardless of when cash is received or paid.

These two statements report the Municipality's net assets and changes in them. You can think ofthe Municipality's

net assets -the difference between assets and liabilities- as one way to measure the Municipality's financial health, or

financial position. Over time, increases or decreases in the Municipality's net assets are one indicator of whether its

financial 
_health 

is improving or deteriomting. You will need to consider other non-financial factors, however, such

as changes in the Municipality's property tax base and the condition ofthe Municipalirys rcads, to assess the oveaall

health of the Municipality.

In the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities, we divide the Municipality into two kinds of
activities:

Govemmental activities - Most of the Muflicipality's basic services are reported here, including the public safety,

sanitation. health, housing, public work, sports and recreation, and general administration. Property taxes,

Municipal ta_xes. fi-anchise fees, state contributions and federal grcnts finance most ofthese activities.

proprietary business rype activities - The Municipality includes in its rePort as a business q?e activity the

operations of the Historic and Tourist Center of Cibuco. This activity is important because the MunicipaliLv is

financially accountable for it.

Futrd Financial Statements
The Fund Financial Statements provide detailed information about the Municipality's most significant funds, not_the

Municipality as a whole. The Municipality has two kinds of fund which are the govemmental furd and proprietary

tund.

Govemmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions repoted as govemmental activities in the

Govemment Wiale Financial Statements. However, unlike the Cove.nment Wide Financial Statements, Govemment

Fund Financial Starements focus on near term inflows and outflows ofexpendable resources, as well as on balances

of expendable r€sources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information is useful in evaluating the

Municipality's near term financial requirements.

Because tie focus of govemmental funds is narrower than that of the govemment wide financial statements, it is

useful to compare thi information presented for gov€mmental funds with similar information presented for

govemmental activities in the govemment wide financial statements. By doing so, userc of the basic financial

itatements may better understand the long{erm impact ofthe Municipality's near term financial decisions.



COMMON\IDALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MIJNICIPALITY OF COROZAL
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Both of the Govemmental Fund Balance Sheet and the Govemmental Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditues

and Changes in Fund Balances prcvide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between govemfiental funds

and govemmental activities.

proprietary funds are used when the Municipality charges customers for the services it provides-whether to outside

customersor to other units ofthe Municipality-these services are generally reported in proprietary funds, Proprietary

firnds are reported in the same way that all activities are rcported in the Statement ofNet Assets and the Statement of
Activities, but provide more detail and additional information, such as cash flows, for prop etary funds'

Itrfrastructure Assets
Historically, a govemmenfs infrastructure (roads, bridges, tra{fic signals, etc.) have not been rcported nor

depreciatei in govemment financial stat€ments. GASB 34 requires that these assets be valued and reported within

the govemmental column ofthe Govemment-Wide Statements. Additionally, the govemment must elect to either (a)

dep;eciate these assets over their estimated useful life or (b) develop a system of asset management designed to

miintain the sewice delivery potential to near perpetuity. Ifthe govemment develops the asset management system

(the modified approach) which periodically (at least every third year), by category, measues and demonstrates its

maintenance of locally established levels of service standards, the govemment may r€cord its cost ofmaintenance in

lieu of depreciation. The information about the condition and maintenance of condition of the govemment

infrasmrcture assets should assist financial statement users in evaluating a local govemment and its performance

ovfftime.

As ofJuly 1,2003, the Municipality commenced the prospective reporting of infrastuctur€ assets, and rctroactively

report thi historical costs of infrastructure assets during the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2003' Also, the

Municipality elected to deprcciate infrastucture assets instead of using the modified approach'

TINAIVCIAL AIIALYSIS OF TIIE MI,IMCIPALITY AS A WI{OLE

Net Assets
As noteal earlier. net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a govemment's financial Position. The

Municipality-s net assets of govemmental activit;es totaled $33,833,221 at the end of current yeaq compared to

$32.94i.68i at the end ofthe previous- year; this increase of$890,540 represents the operational result of excess

revenues over expenilitures. the net assets ofthe proprietary business t]!e activities totaled $4,906,841 at the end

of current year, compared to $5,029,652 at the end of the previous- year; this decrease of$122,811 was due to

deprcciation charges.

The largest portion of the Municipalitys net assets is the investment in capital assets such as land, buildings,

i.prore-*"ntr, vehicles, equipment, infiastructure, etc., less any outstaoding Ielated debt used to acquire those

assets, representing the net;mount of$30,214,409. The Municipality uses these capital assets to plovide services to

is citizens; consequently, these assets are not available ior future spendinS. Although, the Municipaliqy's investment

in its capital assei is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the rcsouces needed to repay this debt

must be provideal fiom the Debt Service Fund, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these

liabilitie;. The amounrs restricted for debt service ($1,582,351), amount restricted for other puryoses ($1,177,162)

and ainounts rest cted for capital projects ($7,466,531), rePresents another portion of the net assets. These ale

rcsources subject to extemal restrictions for the purposes explained above.

A comparative analysis ofgovemment_wide financial data is presented in next page.



COMMONWEALTH OF PT]ERTO RICO

MLINICIPAIITY OF COROZAL
MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Cond€nsed Stat€ment of Net Assets

As of Jun€ 30, 2010 and 2009

Curent asset

Capital assets-net

Other assels

Total assets

Current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities

Total liabilities
Invested in capital assets,

net of related debt

Unrest cted (deficit)
Resl cted

Total net assets

$ 6,176,434 $ 7,984,319

37,0t2,568 34,847,295
9-028-298 5.432.998

52-2t7-300 48.264.672

3,897,533 4,714,444
14-486.546 t0.607.54',7

18.384.079 15.321.991

25,307,568 2',7,057,295
(1,700,391) (2,981,31s)
t0-226-044 8.8',72-701

s 33.833.221 S 32.942.681

Proprietary Fund
2010 2009

$ 20,362 $ 1,967

4,906,841 s,029,652

4.92'7-206 5.031.619

20,365 1,967

20.365

Govenmental
2010

Activities
2009

1.524

4,906,841 s,029,652

$4.906.841 $5.029.652

Changes in Net Assets

The Municipality's govemmental activities net assets increases by $890,540; due to excess revenues over expenses

Approximately 32 percent ofthe Municipality's revenue came from taxes, while 62 percent resulted from grants and

contributions, including federal aid- Charges for Services and other sources provided 6 percent of the total

revenues. Current pe.iod revenues decreased by $1,774,1?4 (10%) while expenses decreased $88a,006 (6%) The

Municipality,s expenses cover a range ofservices. The largest expenses were for general govemment administration,

sanitation, public works, housing, municipal police and depreciation.

The Business tpe activities net assets decreased by $122,811 due 1o depreciation charges. Total Ievenue ofthe

business gpe aciivity came Iiom fees and Municipality contributions. The largest expenses were for depreciation,

and operations. The Business T)?e Activities rcvenue from Municipality conaibutions increased $32,320 or

t5%.

A compamtive analysis ofgovemment-wide opemtional data is presented in next page.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MT]NICIPA TY OF COROZAL

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Cotrdeosed Statement of Activities
For the years ended June 30, 2010 and 2009

GOI'ERNMENTAI ACTIVTTIES:
2010

Program revenues:

Charges for services

Operating grants and contibutions

Capital grants and contributions

General revenues:

Property taxes

Municipal license tax

Sal€s taxes

lntercst and investment eamings

Gmnts and contributions not restricted

Total revenues

Expenses

Ceneral Administration
Health

Housing

Emergency management and safety

Sports and recreatioa

Sanitation
Elderly centers

lnterest on long-term debt

Depreciation
Public works

Total expenses

Excess rcvenues ovet expenses

BUSINESS TYPtr ACTMIIEST
Revenues:

Gmnts and contributions

Fees

Total revenues

Expenses:

operating and maintenance

Depreciation

Total expenses

Excess revenue over exp€nses

$ 694,372

1,214,274

2,012,613

1,056,488

r,442,103
238,040

6,557,270

15,748,812

s,700,621

458,331

703,450

705,045
425,638

1,105,044

330,3',75

761,256
2,023,079

2,645.42',7

t4,858,272

$ ___q99i4

2009

$ 166,04s
|,932,t06
3,185,815

t,139.168
1,000,655
't,34t,237

160,701

7,397,259

17,522,986

6,679,238

458,331

699,911

125,00t
486,498

1,205,173

331,472

325,642

r,648,250
3,182,162

t5,742,278

$ !t!!Jqq

$ 250,691

41,605

292,296

292,4E9

t22,618

415,101

$ 112?,!.11)

7

$ 218,371

44.455

262,826

262.826
t23,5t7

386,343

s {1?ll.1z)



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF COROZAL
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

TINANCLAL ANAIYSIS OF THE MI]MCIPALITY'S INDT1IDUAL tr'UNDS

As noteal earlier, the Municipality uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance related

legal requirements.

covemmental Funds
The focus of the Municipality's govemmental funds is to provide information on neal-term inflows, outflows, and

balances ofexpendable risources. Such information is useful in assessing the Municipality's financing requiremenls.

In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure ofa govemment's net rcsources available for

spending at the end of the fiscal year.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the Municipaliry's govemmental funds reported combined ending fund

balances of $1t,661,685 an increase of $1,599,539 in comparison with the prior year. There are reservations offund

batance amounting to $10,525,712. This is rhe fund balance that it is not available for new spending because it has

already been comiritted fo. the following purposes: 1) to liquidate contracts and purchase orden (encumbmnces)

of theirior fiscal year ( $299,668), 2) to pay debt sewice ($ 1,582,35 I ), 3) to pay for capital projects ($?,466,531)

4) for other purposes ($1,177,162). Accordingly, the unreserved fund balance arnounts to $1,135,973 in the

govemmental funds.

within the govemmental funds, ir is included the General Fund which is the chief operating firnd of the

Municipalityi As ofJune 30, 2010, the general fund has a balance of$1,785,641. The fund balance ofthe general

fund increased by $1,106,196. Key factors in the increase ofthe fund balanc€ arc as follows:

. Excess revenues over expenditures

. Tmnsfer liom other govemmental funds

$468,625

$637,s',71

Revenues decreased by $208,523 (2%) due 10 aD increase in propert) taxes of $605,559, a decrease of

$(917,304) in connibutions from Govemment ofPR, and a net increase of $103,222 in all othel revenue items.

iip"naitr.", decreased $(1,239,825) (lo%) due to a $(701,114) decrease in public works, $(769,058) decrease in

cafital outlays, and a net increase of$230,347 for all other expenditures categories'

The capital Project Futrd Balance, which is reserved for major capital expenditures, reflected an increase of
$1,2E3,4i9 due to excess expenditures over revenues of $(2,319,348), transfers to the general fund of$(622'213)

and p.""eed. f.om loans issued of $4,225,000. capital expenditures for acquisition ofvehicles, construction and

improvements olrccreational facilities, and infiastructure in this firnd amounted to $4,362,293'

The Joint Resolutions Fund balance decreased by $368,464 due to excess exPenditures over revenues.

The Debt service Funat balance reported a decrease of $488,306 as a result of€xcess exPenditurcs ovel rcvenues of
($469,697), and net tlansfers to general fund of$18,609.
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COMMONWEAITH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF COROZAI
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

other Goverrmental F[nds balances increased by $66,674 mainly for excess revenues over expenditures of
$63,423 and t.ansfers from general fund of $3,251.

Business-type Activities net assets decreased by $122,811. Revenues of the Municipality's business-D?e

activities r;ported $292,296 while expenses amounted to $415,10?, including a charge for depreciation of $122,618.

Business Tne Acrivities fee revemre increased $29,410 (11%) including revenue from Mu icipality contributions

which increased $32,320 (15%). Total expenses increased by $28,764 (7%).

GENER{I tr,UIID BIJ.DGETARY HIGELIGIITS

Over the course of the year, the Municipality Council revised the Municipality's budget in order to include incrcases

in revenues that were identified during the cou6e of the fiscal year based on curent developments that positively

affected the Municipality's finances. Increases (decreases) in budgeted expenditures were also made since the law

mandates a balanced budget.

ln summary the general fund actual revenues were over budget by $17,996 and actual expenditures were under

budget by 499,794, for a net favorable variance of$lt7,790. The individual variances between budget and actual

results were not significant.

CAPITAL ASSETS AN'D DEBT ADMIMSTRATION

Capital Assets

The Municipalitv,s investment in capital assets. including business Lvpe activities. as of June 30, 20!0, amountsto

$60,55a,23j, with accumulated depreciation of$18,634,824' leaving a net book value of$41,919,409; of which

$37,012,56E arc used for govemmental activities and $4,906,841 for business q?e activities. This investment in

capital assets includes land, buildings, improvements, equipment, vehicles, infrastructure and construction in

progess. [nfrastructure assets are items that are normally irremovable and of value only to the state, such as roads,

bidges, streets and sidewalks, and similar items.

Actual expenditures to purchase or conshuct capital assets for govemmental activities were $4,210,565 for the year.

Depreciation charges for the year totaled $2,145,697, of which $2,023,079 are related to govemmental activities and

$122,618 to business qpe activities.

The Municipality finances a sigrificant portion of its consruction activities through bond issuances The proceeds

fiom bond iisuances designated for construction activities are committed in its entirety for such purposes and cannot

be used for any other purposes. As ofJune 30,2010theMunicipalityhas$6,781,36?ofunexpendedProceeds
from bond issuances and $685,164 from other sources, for a total of $7,466,531 that are committed to future

construction activities, including completion of the Convention Center, the reconstruction of "Plaza Pfblica",

infiasuucture construction and other project.



COMMONWXALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MI'NICIPALITY OF COROZAL
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Bonds payable

Notes payable

Advances from CRIM

Debt Administration

The Puerto Rico Legislature has established a limitation for the issuance of general obligation municipal bonds and

not". ro. tt 
" 

payne-nt of which the good fairh, credit and ta,\ing power of each municipality may be pledged. See

..t-imitations on abil;ty of Municipaiities to lssue General Obligation Debt - The Municipal Bonds" for a general

description of such limitations.

The applicable law also requires that in order for a municipality to be able to issue additional general obligation

bonds and notes the municipality must have sufficient "pa),rnent capacity". Act No. 64 provides that a municipality

has sumcient ..payment caiacity" to incur additional general obligation debt ifthe deposits in such municipality's

Redemption Fu;dand the innual amounts collected with respect to such municipality's special- Additional Ta,{ (as

defined'below), as projected by GDB, will be sufficient to service maturity of the municipality's outstanding general

obligation debt and the additional proposed general obligation debt ("Pa)'rnent Capacity")'

The Municipality is required under applicable law to lely the Special Additional Tax in such amounts as shall be

required forthe iayment of its general obligation municipal bonds and notes. In addition, principal of and interest

on a general obligation municipal bonds and notes and on all municipal notes issued in anticipation ofthe issuance

of gerieral obligation bonds isiued by the Municipality constitute a first lien on the Municipality's Basic Tax

revinr.,es. Accoidingly, the Municipality's Basic Ta.r revenues would be available to make debt service payments on

general obligation 
-municipal 

bonds and notes to th€ extent that the special Additional Ta-.( levied by ihe

i4unicipaliry, together with moneys on deposit in the Municipality's Redemption Fund, are not sufficient to cover

such debt service. [t tras never been necessary to apply Basic Taxes to pay debt seryice on genelal obligation debt of
the Municipality.

During the year ended June 30, 2010 the Municipality issued $4,225,000 in Iong term debt As of June 30'

2010 the Municipality Long Term Debt is composed as follows:

$ I 1,000,000

705,000
1.285.182

$ 12,990,182

other long telm obligations consist of $1,940,850 of accrued compensated absences such as vacations and sick leave

and an accrued legal claim of$350,000.

AsofJune30,20lotheMuoicipalityrcdemptionfund(debtservice)hasresourcesof$2,258,6l5,restrictedforthe
pa),rnent of long telm debt p ncipal and interest.

ECONOT{IC FACTORS AI\D NEXT YEAR'S BUDGETS AND RATDS

The Municipality relies primarily on property and municipal ta-\es as well as contributions and gBnts to carry out

th" gore-."ntrl activities. Hisiorically, property taxes, municipal taxes and-PR- Govemment contributions have

been- predictable. Fealeral gmnt ."r"nuis ."y vary if new grants are available but the revenue also is very

predictable.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MLNICIPALITY OF COROZAL
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Facto$ considered when preparing the Municipality's budget for the 201 0-20 1 I fiscal year'

In summary all revenu€s and expenditues for the general fund were budgeted in $11,773,182 which reprcsents a net

increase oi $426,816 or 4olo in estimated revenues; and a net increase of $351,816 or 3o% fot expenditure

appropriations. As presented in the General Fund Budgetary Comparison Schedule, the fiscal year 2009-2010 hnal

b;get consider the use of$75,000 from prior years unrcserved fund balalce of the General Fund'

No significant changes were presented between the budget for fiscal year 2009-2010 and the one for fiscal year

2010-2011.

FINAIICIAL CONTACT

The Municipality,s financial statements are d€signed to present users (citizens, taxpayers, customers, investo$ and

creditors) with a general overview of the Municipality's finances and to demonstrate the Municipality's

accountability. If you have questions about the report or need additional financial information, contact the

Municipality's Chief Financial Officer at P.o. Box 710 or#9 Cervantes Street, Corozal, Puerto Rico 00783'
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF COROZAL

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30,2O1O

GOVERNi'ENTAL BUSINESS TYPE

ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES
20't0

TOTAL
2009

TOTALASSETS

Current Assets:
Cash
lnvestment
Accounts receivable:

Other
Taxes

Due fiom other govemments

Total current assets

Noncurrent Assets:
Cash held with fiscal agent
Capital Assets (net of depreciation)

Total noncunent assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Cunent Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Due to other governmental units
Deferred Revenues
Accrued interest on Loans
Current portion of long term debt

Total cunent Iiabilities

Noncurrent Liabilities:
Advances f.om CRIM Law 42
Advances from CRIM Law 146
Advances from CRIM - other
Loan PR Treasury Department Law 80

Eonds Payable
Notes payable
Legal claims and judgements
Accrued compensated absences
US Depadment of Agriculture

Less: Reported as current portion

Total noncurrent liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS
lnvested in CapitalAssets, net of related debt
Restricted for Capital Projects
Restricted for oebt Service
Restricted for Other Purposes
Unrestricted - (deficit)

TOTAL NET ASSETS

20,365 6,196,799 7,986,346

9,028,298 5,432,998
4,906,841 4'1,9'19,409 39,876,947

4,906,841 50,947,707 45,309,945

4,927,206 57,144,506 53,296,291

$ 926,715
3,300,000

180,272
275,881

1,493,566

6.176,434

9,028,298
37,012,568

46,040,866

52,217.300

- $ 926,715
3,300,000

$ 1,224,635
4,792,476

162,422
52,089

1,754,724

20,365 200,637
275,881

1,493,566

621,986
1,213,385
1,031,412

236,264
794,486

3,897,533

1,007,986
243,925

33,271

11.000.000
705,000
350,000

1,940,850

20,365

20,365

642,351
1,213,385
1.031,412

236,2U
794,486

3,917,898

1,007,986
243,925

33,271

11,000,000
705,000
350,000

1,940,850

478,241
1.236,307
1,211,327

191323
I,599,213
4,716,411

1,024,257
255.012
53,881
10,925

7,055,000
735,000
500,000

2,058,685
510,000

12,206,760
(1,599,213)

15,281,032
(794.486\

14,486,546

18,384,079

25,307,568
7,466,531
1,582,351
1,177,162

{1,700,391)

$ !!.!!!2?1

20,365

4,906,841

$ lpa9,g41

30,214,409
7,466,531
1,582,351
1,177,162

(1,700,391)

$ 38,740,062

32,086,947
6,461,522
1,560,657

850,522
(2,987,315)

$ 3ZpZ?,331

15,281,032
(794,486)

14,4A6,546 10,607 ,547

1A,404,444 15,323,958

part of the financial statements. See auditols report.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNIGIPALITY OF COROZAL

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2O1O

Net changes in fund balances - total governmental funds

Reconciling items:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures.
However, in the statement of activities the cost of these
assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and
reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by
which capital outlays ($4,2'10,565) exceed depreciation
expense ($2,023,079) in the current perjod.

lncrease in accrued matured bonds payable as of June 30, 2010

Other expenses repo(ed in the statement of activities do not
require the use of current flnancial resources and therefore are
not repo(ed as expenditures in govemmental funds

Bonds proceeds provide curent financial resources to
governmental funds, but issuing debt increases long{erm
liabilities in the statement of net assets. Repayment of
bond principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds,
but the repayment reduces long-term liabiljties in the
statement of net assets. This is the amount by which
proceeds ($4,225,000) exceeded repayments ($1,098,92).

Changes in net assets of governmental actjvities

The accompanying notes are integral part of the financial statements.
See audito/s report.

2010

$ 1,599,539

2,187,486

200 000

29.523

(3,126,008)

9 !9qE49
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF COROZAL

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUND

HISTORIC ANO TOURIST CENTER OF CIBUCO
(PROPERTY OF MUNICIPALITY OF COROZAL)

JUNE 30,
2010 2009

ASSETS
Current Assets:

Petty cash
Cash in Bank

Accounts receivable:
Other
Allowance for bad debts

Total current assets

Fixed Assets:
Land
Buildings and improvements
Equipment, furniture and fixtures

Accumulated depreciatjon

Total fixed assets

Other assets:

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Cunent liabilities:

Accounts payable - trade
Other

Total current liabilities

Net assets:
Net investment in fixed assets
Un restricted

Net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

-$

20,365 1,967

20,365

20,365

444,367
5,533,562

249,600
117,140

6,344,709
(1,437,868)

4,906,841

1,967

1,967

444,367
5,533,562

253,749
117,180

6,348,858
(1,319,206)

5,029,652

$ 1,e212!E $lp?1,619

20,365 $ 1,967

20,365 '1,967

4,906,84'1 5,029,652_

4,906,841 5,029,652

$ 194 2.06 $lp!1,Q1e

The accompanying notes are integral part of the financial statements.
See lndependent Auditors' Report.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF COROZAL

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

PROPRIETARY FUND

HISTORIC AND TOURIST CENTER OF CIBUCO
(PROPERTY OF MUNICIPALITY OF COROZAL)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,
2010

REVENUES:

Admission fee
Rental fee
Other income - municipal contribution

Total revenues

EXPENSESI

Operating and maintenance
Depreciation
Other

COST OF OPERATIONS

EXCESS COSTS OVER REVENUES

OTHER

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

292,296

2009

$ 21,655
22.800

218,371

262,826

18.805
22,804

292,296
122,618

'193
123,517

415,107

(122,811)

386,343

(123,517)

BEGINNING NET ASSETS

ENDING NET ASSETS

\122,811) (123,517)

5,029,652 5,153,169

$ 4,98.q.Q41 91p29,6!2

accompanying notes are integral part of the financial statements.
See lndependent Auditors' Report.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF COROZAL

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUND

HISTORIC AND TOURIST CENTER OF CIBUCO
(PROPERry OF iiluNlclPAL|TY OF COROZAL)

FOR THE YEAR ENOED JUNE 30,

CASH FLOWS FROM OPEMTING ACTIVITIES

Changes in net assets

Adjustment to convert changes in net assets
to cash provided by operatinq activities:
Depreciation expenses
(lncrease) Decrease in accounts receivable -
lncrease (Decrease) in accounts payable - trade
Other items

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

(lncrease) Decrease in other equipment

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

2010

$ \122,811)

122,618
(18,398)
18,398

193

2009

$ (123,517)

123,5't7
(443)
443

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH

CASH AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AT END OF YEAR

accompanying notes are integral part of the financial statements.
See lndependent Auditors' Report.

The
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COMMOIYWEALTH OF PIJERTO RICO
MIJ}ICIPALITY OF COROZAL

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010

Organiz-ation ald Summary of Significatrt Accounting Policies

The Municipality ofCorozal ofthe Commonwealth ofPuerto fuco (the "Municipality") is a local government

constituted in 1795 with full legislative, fiscal and administrative powers to opemte as a govemment.

The Commonwealth's Constitution provides for the separation of powers of the executive, legislative and

.judicial branches of the Commonwealth and the municipalities. However, the Municipality's govemmental

system consists ofexecutive and legislative branches only- A Mayor, elected every four years by the citizens,

exercises the executive power of the Municipality. The legislative power ofthe Municipality is exercised by
the Municipal Legislature, whose members are also elected every four years. Thejudiciary power is exercised

by the General Justice Court System ofthe Commonwealth, which hasjudsdiction over the Municipality.

The Municipality assumes either full or shared responsibility for providing services to its citizens related to
public housing, welfare, public safety, health, sanitation, education, culture, recreation, €ducation, urban

development, economic development, and many other fiscal, general and administrative services.

Financial Reportitrg Model

The accompanying basic financial statements present tle financial position and the results ofopemtions of
the Municipality as a whole, and its various govemmental funds as of and for the fiscal year ended June

30, 2010, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
(GAAP), as prescribed by the Govemmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB).

According to the financial reporting model established by GASB Statement No. 34, Basic

Financial Statements and Management 's Discussio and Analysis - for State and Local
Gorernments (GASB No. 34), the required basic financial statement presentation applicable to
the Municipality is composed of the following elements: (1) govemment-wide financial
statemerts (GWFS), (2) governmental flrnd financial statements (GFFS), (3) notes to basic

financial statements, and (4) required supplementary information (RSI).

lqSI consisting of a Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A), is information presented along

with, but separate ftom, Municipality's basic financial statements.

MD&A is 
^ 

nafiati\e rcport that introduces the accompanying basic financial statements and provides an

analltical overview of the Municipality's financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010,

based on the Municipality's knowledge of the transactions, events and conditions reflected in the basic

financial statements. The MD&A also highlights certain key fiscal policies that contol the Municipality's

oPerations.

a)



b)

COMMONWEALTH OF PI]ERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF COROZAL
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010
(continued)

other supplementary information presented in this report for purposes ofadditional analysis consist of:

(1) combining and individual non-major govemmental fund financial statements, (2) budgetary comparison

schedule - debt service fund, and (3) schedules of capital assets used in the operations of govemmental

funds, as listed in the accompanving table of contents.

trinancial Reporting Entity

The Municipality follows the provisions of CASB Statement No. 14, The Findncial Reporting Entity (GASB

No, 14) and GASB StatemertNo. 39, Detemining t hether Certain Organizations are Component Units an

Amendment ,JGASB Statemer?r 1vo. ,l (GASB No. J9l to determine its financial reporting entity.

The accompanying basic financial statements include all departments, agencies and municipal operational

units that are under the legaland adminisEative control ofthe Mayor, and whose financial resources are under

the legal custody and control of the Municipality's Director ofFinance and Budget, as prescribed by Act No.

81.

The Municipality's management has considered all potential component units (whether govemmental, not-

for-prcht. or profit-o ented) for which it may b€ financially accountable, and other legally separate

organizations for which the Municipality is not financially accountable but the natue and significance oftheir
relationship with the Municipality may be such that exclusion oftheir basic financial statements fiom those of
the Municipality would cause the accompanying basic financial statements to be misleading or incomplete.

Accordingly, a legally separate organization would be reported as a component unit ofthe Municipality ifall
ofthe following criteria are met:

The Mayor appoints a voting majority of an organization's goveming body and, either (l) the

Municipality has the ability to impose its will on that organization or (2) the organization has the potential

to provide sp€cific financial benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens on, the Municipality.

The economic resources for which the Municipality is entitled, either received or held by the separ"ate

organization, are entirely or almost entirely for the direct benefit ofthe Municipality or its constituents.

The Municipality's management has concluded that, based on the aforementioned c teri4 there is no entity

that should be reported as component units ofthe Municipality for the fiscal year ended June 30,2010'

Governmetrt-wide Financial Statements

The accompanying GWFS are composed of: (l) the statement ofnet assets and (2) the statement ofactivities.

These financial statements report information of all govemmental activities of the Municipality as a whole.

These statements are aimed it presenting a broad overview of the Municipality's finances by reporting its

financial position and results of operations using methods that are similar to those used by most p vate

businesses.

c)
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(continued)

The focus ofGWFS is on the operational accountability ofthe Municipality as a single economic unit a[d Dot

on compliance with budgets, regulatory requirements or on the use of available or curently expenalable

financial resourc€s (refened to as fiscal accountability). Operational accountability is the Municipality's
responsibility to report to the extent to which it has met its operating objectives efficiently and effectively,
using all resources available for that purpose. It focuses on the Municipality's pdncipal operating objective,
which isto provide services to its citizens.

Statement ofNet Assets
The accompanying statement of net assets provides short-tem and long-term information about the
Municipality's financial position by presenting all of the Municipality's ass€ts and liabilities, with the
difference between these two items reponed as "net assets" (equity) and or net liabilities. This staiement
assists management in assessing the level of sewices that can be provided by the Municipality in the future
and its ability to meet its obligations as they become due. In addition, this statement reports the extent to
which the Municipality has invested in capital assets and discloses legal and contractual restrictions on
resources.

Net assets are classified in the accompanying statement ofnet assets within the following three categodes:

Invested in capital ,ssets, net of related debt This net asset category consists of capital assets, net of
accumulated depreciation and amortization, reduced by the outstanding balances of bonds payable, notes
payable and other debts that are attributed to the acquisition, constructior or improvement of those assets

(capital-related debD. For the purposes of determining th€ outstanding debt attributed to capital assets, the
total long-term debt related to the acquisition, construction or improvement of capital assets has been

reduced by any related unspent debt proceeds and any related unamortized debt issuance costs.

ln addition, for the purposes of determining the outstarding debt athibuted to capital assets, the following
items are excluded from the calculation: (l) interest payable, (2) acuued intercst on deep discount debt
and non-capital accrued liabilities (e.g. compensated absences, claims and judgments, etc.), and (3) debt

used to finance capital acquisitions by parties outside the Municipali0. Futhermore, the computation or
net assets invested in capital assets, net of related debt, excludes inter-fund loans and other financial
assets.

Restricted net assets -This net asset category consists of net resources restricted by extemal parties (such

as debt covenants, fieditors, grantors, contributors, laws or regulations ofother govemments, etc.), or net
assets for which constraints are imposed by constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. Enabling
legislation consists of legislation that autho zes the Municipality to assess, ler'5r, charge or otherwise

mandate pa),rnent of resources (from extemal resource providers). Enabling legislation establishes

restrictions if it includes a legally e[forceable requirement that those resources be used only for
the specific purposes stipulated in the legislation.
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The classification of restricted net assets identifies resources that have been received or eamed by the
Municipality With all explicit understanding between the Municipality and the resource providers that the
resources would be used for specific purposes. Grants, contributions and donations are often given under

those kinds ofconditions. Bond indentures also often Iimit the use ofbond proceeds to specific purposes.

Intemally imposed designations ofrcsources, including earmarking, are not reported as restricted net assets.

These designations consist ofmanagement's plans for the use ofresources, which are subject to change at the
discretion of the Municipal Legislature.

The Municipality has reported the following types of restdcted net assets in the accompanying statement of
net assets as ofJune 30, 2010:

(1) Debt service - Represent net rcsources available to cover future debt senice payments of bonds
payable.

(2) Other purposes -Represent net resources available from certain fedeml and state graflts, which have

been set aside to carry out several progmms.

(3) Capital project - Represents net resources available for the acquisition or conshuction of major
capitalfacilities.

Utrrestricted net assets - Generally, this category consists ofthe excess of assets over related liabilities that
are neither extemally nor legally restricted, neither invested in capital assets. Genemlly, the assets recorded

within this category are designated to indicate that management does not consider them to be available for
general operations. Assets reported within this category often have constaints that are imposed by

management but caa be removed or modified.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the Municipality's policy to
generally use restdcted resources fiIst, and then unrcstdcted resources as they arc needed.

Statement of Activities
The accompanying statement of activities presents the Municipality's results of opemtions by showing how

the Municipality's net assets chanSed during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010, using a net (expense)

revenue format. This statement presents the cost ofeach function/program as well as the extent to which each

of the Municipality's functions, progBms or other services either contributes to or draws from the

Municipality's general revenues (such as property ta.xes, municipal license taxes, construction excise ta.xes,

etc.)-
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A firnction/program describes a group ofactivities that are aimed at accomplishing a major service

or regulatory responsibility. The functions/prcgrams repo.ted in the accompanying basic financial
statements are: (1) general adminishation, (2) Public wo.h (3) Health, (4) emergency
management, (5) Municipal police (6) Sports and rccreation (7) Saoitation (8) Elderly centers (9)
Housing.

The statement of activities demonstmtes the degree to which progmm rcvenues offset direc! expenses of a
given functior/pogam or segments. Direct expenses arc those that are clearly identifiable with a specific
function, segment or operational unit. This statement reports revenues in two broad categories: (1) program

rcvenues and (2) general revenues.

Program revenues are genemted directly from a program itself or may come from parties outside the

Municipality's ta-xpayers or citizens. In the statement of activities, progmm revenues reduce the costs
(expenses) ofthe function/program to arrive at: (1) the net cost ofthe functiorl/progam that must be financed
llom the Municipality's general revenues or (2) the net progmm revenue that contributes to the Municipality's
geneml revenues. The accompanying statement of activities rcports the following categories of progm
revenues for the fiscal year ended June 30 2010:

Charges for services , These rcvenues generally consist of exchange or exchangeJike tansactions
involving charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use or dircctly beDefit fiom the goods,

services or privileges provided, or arc otherwise directly affected by the services. These revenues include
fees charged for specific services, charges for licenses and permits, and fines and forfeitures, among

others.

Program-specific operating alld capital grants and contributions - These revenues consist of
transactions that are either mandatory or voluntary non-exchange transactions with other governments,

organizations, or individuals that restrict the rcsources for use in a particular progam. Operating Srants
and contributions consist of resources that are required to be used to finance the costs of operating a

specific program or can be used either for op€rating or capital purposes of a specific progam. Capital
gmnts and contributions colsist of revenues or resources that are restricted for capital purposes - to
purchase, constuct or rcnovate capital assets associated with a specific progam. Restricted oPerating and

capital gants and contributions are progmm revenues because they are specifically attributable to a
prograrn and reduce the net expense of that program to the Municipality. They are reported net of
estimated uncollectible amounts.

General revenues are the default category for revenues. lt includes all revenues and Sains that do not meet ihe
definition of progam revenues. Property taxes, municipal license ta.xes, sales and use taxes and construction
excise taxes are rcported as geneml revenues. All other non-tax revenues (including unrestricted interest on

deposits, grants and contributions not restricted fm specific programs and miscellaneous revenues) that do not

meet the definition of program revenues ar€ classified as general revenues. Resources that are dedicated

intemally by the Municipality are reponed as general revenues rather than as progmm revenues. All general

r€venues are reported net of estimated uncollectible amounts, which are reco.ded as reduction of revenues

rather than as expenses.
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The general government functiorvprogram reported h the accompanying statement of activities includes

expenses that are, in essence, indjrect or costs of other functions/progmms ofthe Municipality.

Even though some ofthese costs have b€en charged to certain funds in the GFFS as indirect cost allocations
permitted under some federal programs, the Municipality has reported these indirect costs as direct expenses

of the general govemment function. Accordingly, the Municipality generally does not allocate general

govemment (indirect) costs to other functions-

The effects ofall inter-fund govemmental activities (revenues, expenditures and other financing sourcevuses

among govemmental funds) have been removed from the accompanying statements of net assets and

activities.

The Municipality classifies all of its activities as govemmental activities in dre accompanying GWIS. These

are activities generally financed through t&\es, intergov€mmental revenues and other non-exchange revenues

that can be used to support the Municipality's programs or services. These govemmental activities are also
generally reported in the GFFS.

The Municipality has no fiduciary activities, which are those in which the Municipality would be holding or
managing net assets for specific individuals or other extemal parties in accordance with trust agreements or
other custodial arrangements.

d) GoverDmeDtal Futrd Finencial Statements

A fund is a fiscal and accounting entity consisting of a self-balancing set of accounts used to record assets,

liabilities and residual equities, deficits or balances, and changes therein, which are segregated for the purpose

of carrying on specific activities or attaining certain objectives in accordance with CAAP and/or special

regulations, resfictions or limitations.

The accompanying GFFS are composed of: (l) the balance sheet govemmental firnds, (2) the statemenl of
revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances (deficits) govemmental funds and (3) the statement of
revenues and expenditures -budget and actual budgetaly basis -general fund.

These financial statements report the financial position and results oPemtions of the Municipality's
govemmental funds by presenting sources, uses and balances of current financial resouces Some of thes€

financial statements have a budgetary orientation and focus primarily on: (I) the Municipality's major
govemmental funds, as defined below, (2) the fiscal accountability and (3) the individual parts of the
Municipality's govemment. Fiscal accountability represents the Municipality's resPonsibiliry tojustiry that its

actions in the current flscal year have complied with public decisions conceming the mising and spending of
public moneys in the short term (generally one fiscal year)-

The accompanying GFFS segregate govemmental fimds according to their iltended pupose and axe

used in demonstrating compliance with legal, financial and contactual provisions. The minimum
mrmber of govemmental funds is maintained consistent with legal and self-imposed managerial

requirements established by the Municipality.
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For financial reporting purposes, the Municipality classifies its govemmental funds within the following
categories:

General fund -The general fund is the Municipality's main operating fund and a major govemmental fund,

as defined below, used to account for all financial resources and govemmental activities, except for frnancial
resources requircd to be accounted for in another fund. [t is presumed that the Municipality's govemmental

activities have been reported in the general fund except for fiansactions for which one of the following
compelling reasons has required the use of another fund: (l) legal requirements, (2) GAAP requirements or
(3) the demands of sound financial administralion requiring the use of a govemmental firnd other than the

general firnd.

Debt sedic€ futrd - The debt service fund is a major govemmental fund, as dehned below, used by the

Municipality to account for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of, principal and interest for:
(1) bonds payable for which debt service payments arc legally mandated to be accounted for in a debt service

fund and/or (2) bonds payable or any general long-te.m debt for which the Municipality is being

accumulating financial resources in advance to pay principal and interest pa)ments maturing in future yea$.

Consistently with the prior fiscal years' financial statement presentation, during the fiscal year ended June 30,

2010, the financial activity accounted for in the debt service fund was specifically related to bonds payable.

Special reyeDue funds - Special revenue fiinds arc govemmental funds, as defined below, used by the
Municipality to account for revenues derived from grants, contributions or other rcvenue sources thal are

either self-restricted by the Municipality or legally reshicted by outside Parties for use in specific purposes

The uses and timitations of each special revenue fund are specified by municipal ordinances or federal and

state statutes. However, rcsources resticted to expenditures for purposes normally financed from the general

fund are reported in the Municipality's general fund provided that all applicable legal requirements are

appropriately satisfied. In this case, a special revenue fund to account for such kind of transactions will be

used only if legally mandated.

Capital projects funds - Capital projects funds arc govemmental funds, used to account for the financial

resouces used for the acquisition, construction or improvement of major capital facilities and other assets.

Significant capital outlays financed from proceeds of general obligation, public improvement or special

obligation bonds accounted for in the capital Fojects funds

The use of the capital projects funds has been reserved only for major capital acquisitions, consfuction or

improvement activities that would distort financial resources trend data if not reported separately from the

other Municipality's operating activities.

Proprietary Fu[ds - Prop etary funds are used to account for business-like activities provided to the

general public. These activities arc financed primfiily by user charges and the measurement of financial
;ctivity focuses on net income measurement similar to the private sector. The reporting entity includes the

Historic and Tourist Center of Cibuco as a proprietary fund.
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The focus of the CFFS is on maior govemmental funds, which generally represent the Municipality's most

imponant funds. Accordingly, the Municipality is required to segregate govemmental funds between major and

non-major categories within the GFFS. Major individual govemmental funds are reported individually as sepamte

columns in the GFFS, white data from all non-major govemmental funds are aggegated into a single column,

regardless offund Ope.

By definition, the Municipality's general fund is considered a major govemmental fund for financial reporting
purposes. in addition, any other govemmental fund would be classified as a major govemmental fund in the GFFS

if its total assets, liabilities, revenues or expenditures ofthat individual govemmental fund are at least 10 percent

of the coresponding element total (assets, liabilities, revenues or expenditures) for all govemmental firnds. For
the purposes ofapplying the aforementioned major firnd criteri4 no €liminations of interfund balances have been

made. Total revenues for these purposes means all revenues, including opemting and non-operating revenues (net

of allowances for uncollectible accounts), except for other financing sources Total expenditures for these

purposes mean all expenditures, including operating and non-operating expenditures, except for other financing

uses.

Based on the aforementioned criteri4 the Municipality's major govemmental funds reported in the accompanying

GFFS are: (1) the general fund, (2) the debt service fund, (3) the capital improvements fund, and (4) joint
resolutions fund.

The Municipality periodically undertakes a comprehensive evaluation ofits fund structure to ensure that complies

with all aspects that are of importance to usen of general purpose extemal financial reports. Consequently, all
superfluous funds and som€ intemal funds cu.rently used by Municipality in the day_to_day accounting
procedures have not been reported as individual govemmental funds in the accompanying fund financial

statements.

The accompanying GFFS are accompanied by the following schedules required by GAAP: (l) the reconciliation

of the balance sheet - govemmental funds to the statement of net assets, and (2) the reconc iliation oi the statement

ofrevenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances - govemmental funds to the statement ofactivities-

e) M€asuremetrt Focus and Basis ofAccounting

Government-wide linancial statements - The accompanying GWIS are prepared using the economic

resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accountinS. Subject to the additional rules and

limitations detailed below, revenues (including interest on deposits and investmenls) arc genemlly recorded

when eamed and expenses are generally recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of
related cash flows.

All revenues, expenses, gains losses, assets and liabilities resulting fiom exchange and exchange-like

transactions are generally recorded when the exchange takes place. In exchange transactions, each party to the

transaction receives and gives up essentially equal values. An exchange-like transaction is one in which there

is an identifiable exchange and the values exchanged, though related, may not be quite equal. Neveftheless,
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the exchange chamcteristics of the exchangelike transaction are strong enough to justi& treating it as an

exchange for accounting purposes (examples include fees for licenses and permits, charges for services, and

miscellaneous revenues, which are recorded as revenues when collected because they are generally not

measurable until actually received).

All revenues, expenses, gains, losses and assets resulting from non-exchange hansactions are recorded using
the criteria set forth by GASB Statement No. 33, Accounting and Fi4ancial Reporting for Non-excha ge

farrrdcrbru (CASB No. -l-lr. GASB No. 33 established accounting and reporting standards for non-exchange

transactions involving cash and financial or capital resources (for example, most taxes, glanls and private

donations). In a non-exchange transaction, the Municipality gives (or receives) value without directly
receiving (or giving) equal value in retum. This is different from an exchange lransaction, in which each party

receives and gives up essentially equal values. According to GASB No. 33, the Municipality groups its non-

exchange transactions into the following four classes in the accompanying basic financial statements: (a)

derived tLx revenues, (b) imposed non-exchange revenues, (c) govemment mandated non_exchange

transactions, and (d) voluntary non-exchange transactions-

In the case of imposed non-exchange rcvenue transactions (such as property taxes and municiPal license taxes),

which result fiom assessments made by the Municipality on non-governmental entities, including individuals,

other than assessments on exchange transactions, receivables fie generally recorded in the period when an

enforceable legal claim has arisen. Property ta.xes and municipal license are genemlly recorded as revenues (n€t of
amounts considered not collectible) in the fiscal year when resources are required to be used or lhe first fiscal year

that the use ofthe resources is permited.

Govemment-maldated non-exchange tansaclions (such as gpnts and contributions) result when a govemment at

one level (such as the federal or state govemment) provides resources to the Municipality and the provider

govemment requires the Municipality to use those resources for a specific purpose or purposes established in the
provider's enabling legislation. In these t)?e of tmnsactions, receivables and rcvenues are genemlly recorded

when all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met. Ior the ma.jority of gants, the

Municipality must expend resources on the specific purpose or project before the Fovider reimburses any

amounts. Revenue is, therefore, generally recognized as qualifing reimbursable expenditures are incurred.

Voluntary non-exchange hansactions (such as donations and certain $ants and entitlements) result from

legislative or confactual agrcements, other than exchanges, willingly entered into by two or more parties. In these

t ?es of transactions, receivables and revenues are generally accounted for in the same manner as govemment_

mandated non-exchange transactions discussed above. Events that are neither exchange nor non-exchang€

transactions are recorded when it is probable that a loss has been incurred and the amount of loss is reasonably

estimable.

Receipts of any type ofrcvenue sources collected in advance for use in the following fiscal year are recorded as

uneamed (defened) revenues.
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According to GASB No. 34, all general capital assets and the un-maturcd long-term liabilities are rccorded only in
the accompanying statement of net assets. The measurement fochs and the basis of accounting used in the
accompanfng GWIS differ significantly from lhe measurement focus and baiis of accounting used in the
preparation ofthe accompanying CFFS. Therefore, the accompanying GFFS include rcconciliations, as detailed
in the accompanying table of contents, to better identify the relationship between the GWIS and the GFFS.

Governmental fund financial statemetrts , The accompanying GFFS are reported using the current financial
resources measurement focus (flow of current financial resources) and the modified accrual basis of accounting.
Accodingly, the accompanying statement ofrevenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances -govemmental
funds, reports changes in the amount offinancial resouces available in the near future as a result of transactions
and events of the fiscal year reported, Therefore, revenues are generally recognized as soon as they are both
measuable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the curre
fiscal year or soon enough thercafter to pay liabilities ofthe curent fiscal year. For this purpose, the Municipality
generally considers most revenues (municipal licenses taxes, construction excise taxes, sales and use taxes,
interests on deposit, intergovemmental gBnts and contributions and certain charges for services) to be available if
collected within 90 days after June 30, 2010, except for property taxes fol which the availability period is 60 days.

Revenue sources not meeting this availability criterion or collected in advance are recorded as deferred revenues

at June 30, 2010.

The principal revenue sources considered susceptible to accrual include property ta-\es, municipal license taxes,
intergovemmental grants and contdbutions, interest on deposits, and certain charges for services. These principal
revenue sources meet both measurability and availability criteria in the accompanying GFFS, except for amounts
recorded as deferred revenues.

In a manner similar to the GWIS, but subject to and limited by the availability criteria discussed above, all
revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets and liabilities resulting from exchange and exchangelike transactions are

also generally recorded when the exchange takes place. Accordingly, fees for licenses and permits, charges for
services and miscellaneous revenues are recorded as revenues when collected because they are generally not
measurable until actually received.

All reven0es, expenses, gains, losses and assets resulting fiom non-exchange transactions are recorded in a similar
manner to the GWFS, using the previously discussed criteria set forth by GASB No. 33 for non-exchange

transactions, but subject to and limited by th€ availability criteria discussed above. Accordingly, property tax and

municipal license tax receivables are also generally recorded in the fiscal year when an enforceable legal claim
has arisen while property tax and municipal license tax revenues (net of amounts considered not collectible) are

also generally recorded in the fiscal year when resources are required to be used or the filst fiscal year that the use

ofthe resources is permitted. Receivables and revenues fiom federal and state gmnts and contributions, donations
and entitlements are also generally rccorded when all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been

met (generally, as quali&ing reimbursable expenditures are incurred for expenditure-driven grants).

Interests on deposits are recorded when eamed since these revenues are considered both measurable and available
at June 30, 2010.
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Pursuant to the provisions ofCASB Interpretation No- 6, Recognition and fuIeaswement ofcettai Liabilities and
Expenditutes in Gorem ental Fund Financial Slalemenls (GASBI. No. 6r, in the absence of an explicit
requirement (i.e., the absence ofan applicable modification, discussed below) the Municipality generally accrues

a govemmental fund liability and expenditure (including salaries, professional services, supplies, utilities, etc.) in
the period in which the govemment incurs the liability, to the extent that these liabilities are normally expected to

be liquidated in a timely manner and in full with current available financial rcsources. GASBI No. 6 modified the

recognition criteria for certain expenditures and liabilities reported under the modified accrual basis of accounting
pdor to GASB No. 14, and clarified a number ofsituations in which the Municipality should distinguish between
govemmental fund liabilities and general long-term liabilities. Therefore, the accompanying balance sheet -govemmental funds genemlly reflects only assets that will be converted into cash to satisry curent liabilities.
Longterm assets and those assets that will not be converted into cash to satisry cunent liabilities are generally not
accounted for in the accompanying balance sheet - govemmental funds. At the same time, longlerm liabilities
(generally, those un-matured that will not require the use of current financial resources to pay them) are not
accounted for in the accompanying balance sheet - govemmental funds.

Modifications to the accrual basis ofaccounting in accordance with GASB No. 6 include:

hincipal and interest on tronds payable are recorded when they mathre (when payment is due), except for
principal and interest of bonds due on July l, 2010, which are recorded as govemmental fund liabilities at

June 30, 2010 which is the date when resources were available in the debt service fund.

Certain accounts payable intergovemmental payables and o$er accrued liabilities not due and payable

(un-matured) or not normally expected to be liquidated in firll and in a timely manner with available and

expendable financial resources, are recorded in the accompanying statement ofnet assets- Such liabilities
are recorded in the govemmental funds when they mature.

Executory purchase orde$ and contacts are recorded as a reservatiol of fund balance in the

GFFS.

Tle measurement focus of the GFFS is on decreases of net financial rcsources (expenditures) rather than

expenses. Most expenditures are measurable and are recorded when the related govemmental fund liability is

incured. Allocation of costs, such as depreciation and amortization are recorded in the accompanying

statement ofactivities, but are not recorded in the accompanying GFFS.

f) Stewardship, Compliance and Accountability

Budqetarv Control

The Mayor and its Administrative Cabinet prepare annual budgets each fiscal year for the Municipality's
general fund and debt serice fund. Such legally adopted budgets are based on expected expenditures by
progEm and estimated resources by source. The annual budgets are develoPed using elements ofperformance_

based program budgeting and zero-based budgeting, and include estimates ofrevenues and other resources for
the ensuing fiscal year under laws and regulations existing at the time the budgets are prepared.
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Th€ Mayor must submit for the fiscal year oommencing on the next July 1, an annual Ludgetary resolution

project (the Project) to the Commissioner ofMunicipal Affairs ofthe Cornmonwealth (the Commissioner) and

the Municipal Legislature no later than May l0 and May 15, respectively. The Commissioner preliminary
verifies that the Project complies with all the applicable laws and .egulations and may provide comments and

suggestions ro the Mayor oo or before June 13.

The Municipal Legislature has l0 business days, up to the immediately preceding June 13, to discuss and

approve the Project with modifications. The Municipal Legislature may amend the budgets submitted by the

Mayor but may not increase any items so far to cause a deficit without imposing ta.xes or identifying other
sources ofrevenue to cover such deficit. After the Municipal Legislature modifies and preliminadly appmves

the Project, the modified Project is sent back to the Mayor for his approval or rejection within 6 days. The
Mayor may decrease or eliminate any line item but may not increase or insert any new line item in the budgets.

The Mayor may also veto the budgets in their entirety and retum it to the Municipal Legislature with his
objections. Ifthe Mayor rejects the Project, the Municipal Legislature will have up to 8 days to adopt or reject
the recommendations or objections ofthe Mayor. The approved Project is sent again to the Mayor, which then

rvould have 3 days to si$ and approve il.

If the budgets are not adopted prior to the end of the deadlines refered to above, the annual budgets for the

preceding fiscal year, as approved by the Legislature and the Mayor, arc automatically renewed for the ensuing

fiscal year until the Municipal Legislature and the Mayor approve new budgets. This permits the Municipality
to continue doing payments for its operations and oiher purposes until the new budgets are approved.

The annual budgets may be updated for any estimate revisions as well as fiscal year-end encumbrances, and

may include any additional information requested by the Municipal Legislature- The Mayor may rcquest

subsequent amendments to the approved budgets, which are subject to the approval of the Municipal
Legislature.

The Municipality's Department ofFinance has the responsibility to ensure that budgetary sperding control is

maintained. For day-toiay management control purposes, expendifures plus encumbrances may not exceed

budgeted amounts at the expenditue-type level ofeach cost center (activify within a program within a fund).
The Mayor may tmnsfer unencumbered appropriations within programs within funds The Municipal
Legislature may transfer amounts among progmms within and arnong funds.

The legal level ofbudgetary control (i.e., the level at which expenditures may not legally exceed apFopriation)
is at the functionshrogum l€vel within the geneml and debt service funds, respectively.

Under the laws and regulations of the Commonwealth the appropriations made for any fiscal year shall not

exceed the total revenue, including available surplus, estimated for said fiscal year unless the imposition of
taxes sufficient to cover said appropriatioos is provided.

Budsetarv Accountins

The Municipality's aDnual budgets are prepared using the budgetary (s1atutory) basis of accounting,

which is not in accordance with GAAP.
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According to the budgetary basis of accounting, revenue is genemlly recorded when cash is received. Short_

term and long{em borrowings may be used to ltnance budgetary excess of expenditues over revenues.

The Municipality uses encumbrance accounting to recoid the full amount of purchase orders, conFacls and

other commitments of appropriated resources as deductions fiom the approp ation prior to actual expenditure.

In the govemmental firnds, encumbrance accounting is a significant aspect of budgetary control. Accordingly,
expenditures are genemlly recorded when the related expenditure is incurred or encumbered. Available
appropriations and encumbrances are established to lapse one fiscal year after the end of the fiscal year.

Amounts required to settle claims and judgments against the Municipality, and certain other liabilities, are not
recognized until they are encumbered or otherwise processed for payment. Unencumbered appropriations and

encumbrances lapse at fiscal year-end. Other appropriations, mainly capital projecs appropriations. are

continuing accounts for which the Municipal f.€gislature has authorized that unspent balance from the prior
year be carried forward and made available for current spending-

The accompanying statement ofrevenues and expenditures -budget and actual -budgetary basis -general flrnd,
provides information about the general fund's original budget, its amendments, and the actual results of
operations of such govemmental irnd under the budgetary basis of accounting for the fiscal year ended June

30,2010.

g) Deposits and Investments

Under Puerto Rico statutes, public funds deposited in commercial banks must be fully collateralized for the

amount deposited in excess of federal depository insulance. AII securities pledged as collateial are held by

the Secretary of the Treasury of Puerto Rico. In addition, the Municipality maintains deposits with the

Govemment Development Bank for Puerto Rico (GDB).

The Municipality's bank balances in commercial banls of $113,105 in the general fund were tully
collateralized at June 30, 2010. In the other govemmental funds therc were deposits with commercial
banks of $323,000 of Joint Resolutions Funds, $7,544 of Capital Project Funds, and $483,066 of other
govemmental funds, that were fully collateralized.

The deposits at GDB of $9,028,298, restricted for capital projects, joht resolutions and for debt service,

are unsecured and uncollateralized, as no collateml is required to be carried by govemmental bank.

Investments represents certificate of deposits in the following institutions:

Banco Popular de P.R.

Govemment Development Bank ofP.R.
Total

$2,600,000
700.000

$3.300-000
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Accoutrts Receivabl€

Receivables consist of all revenues earned but not collected at June 30, 2010. These accounts receivables are

stated net of estimated allowances for uncollectible accounts, which are determined based upon past

collectio0 experience, histo cal trends, current economic cooditions and the periodic aging of accounts

receivable.

Activities among governmental funds thal are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding
at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as either "due to/from other funds" (i.e. the current portion of
inter-fund loans) or "advances to/fiom othel funds" (i.e. the non-cuIrent portion of inter-firnd loans), as

applicable. All other outstanding balances betlveen funds are reported as "due to/fiom other funds"

Use of f,stimat€s

The preparation of the accompanying basic financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires
management to make significant estimates and assumptions that affect the rcported amounts of assets and

liabilities, the disclosure of contingeot assets and liabilities at the date of the basic financial statements, and

the reponed amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ fiom
those estimates,

Inter-fund Act'vities

The Municipality has the following q?es of reciprocal and non-reciprocal inter-fund activities recorded

among govemmental funds in the accompalying GFFS:

Inter-futrd loatrs -Represent amounts provided with a requirement for repa),rnent, which are recorded as

"due from" in the lender govemmental fund and "due to" in the bonower govemmental fund. Inter-fund
receivables, which are not considered to be currently available financial rcsources, are rcported as

advances. For amounts not expected to be collected within a reasonable period of time, inter-fund
receivables/payables are reduced to the estimated realizable value and the amount that is not exp€cted to
be repaid is reported as an operating transfer from the govemmental fund that made the loan.

Inter-fuod tmnsfers Represent flows of assets (permanent reallocation of financial resources among

govemmental funds) without equivalent flows of assets in retum and without a requirement for
repa)4nent,

Operating transfers are reported as other financing sources in the govemmental fund making tansfers and

as other financing sources in the govemmental fund receiving ffansfers.

Inter-fund reimbursements Represent repayments fiom the govemmental fund responsible for
particular expenditures or expenses to the governmental fund that initially paid for them-

In the GFFS, inter-fund activity has not been eliminated, as permitted by GAAP.
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k) Capital Assets

Capital assets used in govemmental activities include land and land improvements, buildings, structutes and

building improvements, machinery and equipment, fumiture and fixtures, vehicles, construction in progress,

and infrastructurc- These assets are capitalized and reported in the accompanying statement of net assets.

lnfiastructure assets are generally stationary in nature and include roads, bridges, streets and sidewalks,

dminage systems and other similar assets.

For financial reporting purposes, the Municipality defines capital assets as assets with an individual cost of
$500 or more at the date ofacquisition, consuuction or improvement, and with useful lives extending beyond
one year. All assets with individual costs under $500 or with useful lives not exceeding one year, are charged

directly to expense in the govemment-wide statement of activities. In the govemmental funds, all capital

assets are recorded as capital outlays (expenditures).

ln the $atement of net assets, all capital assets are rccorded at cost or estimated historical cost if actual cost
was unavailable, except for donated capital assets, which are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date

of donation. Estimated historical costs based on deflated curent costs were used to value a significant portion
of the infrastructure constructed or acquired prior to June 30, 2002 and certain lands, buildings, structures and

building improvements.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized in the statement of net assets as proj€cts are

consaucted. The costs of normal maintenance and repa[s that do not add va]ue to the asset or mate ally
extend capitalasset lives are not capitalized.

Depreciation and amortization expense is recorded only in the govemment-wide statement of activities.
Howevet there is no depreciation or amortization rccorded for Iand and construction in progress. Depreciable

capital assets are generally depreciated or amortized over their estimated useful lives under the staightJine
method. The estimated uselul lives ofmajor capital asset categories are:

Description
Buildings
Infrastructure
Building and site improvements
Vehicles
Machinery and equipment

Yeals
50
10
25
10
7

knpaired capital assets that will no longer be used by the Municipality, if any, are reported at the lower of
carrying value or fair value. lmpaiment losses on capital assets with physical damages that will continue to be

used by the Municipality are measured using the restoration cost approach. knpairments ofcapital assets that are

subject to a change in the manner or duration of use, or assets affect€d by enactment or approval of laws or
regulations or oiher chaages in environmental factors or assets that are subject to technological changes or
obsolescence, ifany, are measured using the service units app.oach.

3',7



m)

COMMONWEALTH OF PTIERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF COROZAL
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010
(continued)

Deferred Revetrues

In the GFFS, deferred revenue arises when one ofthe following situations occur:

The Municipality receives resources beforc it has a legal claim to them (uneamed revenue). [n

subsequent periods, when the rcvenue recognition criterion is met, the liability for defened revenue is

remo\ed and rerenue is recogni/ed.

Deferred revenues at the govemment-wide level a se only when the Municipality receives resources before it
has a legal claim to them.

Compensated Absences

Compensated absences are accounted for under the provisions of Statement No. 16, Accounti g for
Compensated Absence, issued by GASB (GASB No. 16). Compensated absences include paid time off made

available to employees in connection with vacation, sick leave and compensatory time. Th€ liability for
compensated absences recorded in the accompanying statement of net assets is limited to leave thal (1) is

attributable to services alrmdy rendered on or before June 30, 20 I 0 and (2) is not contingent on a specific

event that is outside dle control of the Municipality' and the employee (such as illness). Compensated

absences that relate to future services or are contingent on a sp€cific event outside the control ofthe employer
or the employee are accounted for in the period when those services ate rendered or those events take place.

The liability for compensated absences includes salary-related coss, which are directly and incrementally

related to the amount of salary paid to the employee (such as employer's share of Social Secudty taxes and

Medicare taxes).

The vacation policy of the Municipality provides for the accumulation of regllar vacations at a mte of 2.5

days per month (30 days per year) per empioyee. Employees accumulate regular sick leave at a rate of 1.5

days per month (18 days per year). Employees accumulate compensatory time at a mte of 1.5 times the

overtime worked. All vacation and sick leave days accumulated by employees in excess of 30 days and 90

days, respectively, are paid to employees each year, if not consumed, as required by law. In the case of
compensatory time, the excess of240 hourc is paid to employees each year, ifnot consumed. .

Upon termination of emplolment, an employee receives compensation for all accumulated unpaid regular

vacation leave at the curent rate. In the case of regular sick leave, if the employee teminates his or her

employment beforc rcaching 10 years of services, such regular sick leave is not paid to the employee, ifnot
consumed. In addition upon termination of emplo)'rnent, an employee does not receive compensation fo.
compensatory time, ifnot consumed previously. After 10 yeaE of seflices, any regular sick leave balance is

paid to the employee. Accumulated vacation time is fully vested to the employee at any time.

The liability for compensated absences is reported in th€ statement of net assets. A liability for compensated

absences is reported in the GFFS only when matured (when pa)T nent is due), for examPle, as a result of
employee resignations or retirements.
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Long-term Debt

The long term liabilities reported in the accompanying statements of net assets include the Municipality's
bonds payable, notes payable, accrued compensated absences, and accrued legal claiEs andjudgnents ifany.

All long-term debt to be repaid liom govemmental resources is reported as liabilities in the accompanying

statement of net assets. Principal and interest payrnents on bonds due on July 1, 2010 are rccorded as

govemmental Fund liabilities in the GFFS (debt service fund) when .esourc€s are available in the debt

service tund (June 30, 2010). In the GFFS, the face amount ofdebt issued (gross debt reported) is reported as

other financing sources when issued.

Operating Leases

The Municipality leases real property, buildings, vehicles and equipment under several operating lease

agreemerts, which generally have terms of one year or less and are automatically renewed for the same

terms. Rental expenditures recorded in the general fund and in other govemmental funds for the year ended

June 30, 2010, amounted to $58,627. Management believes that the summary of dte firture minimum

rental commitments under non cancelable real property and equipment lease with terms exceeding one year

is not significant.

Accounfng forPensio[ Costs and Post-Employmetrt Betrelits

The Municipality accounts for pension costs from the standpoint of a participant in a multiple-employer cost_

sharing plan. Accordingly, pension costs rccognized in the accompanying basic financial statements are equal

to the statutorily required conributions, with a liability recorded for any unpaid r€quired contributions.

The govemment of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico is considered to be the sponsor of the

Employees' Retirement System of the Governrnent of Puerto fuco and its Instumentalities (ERS)

and System 2000, a mulli-employer cost-sharing defired benefit pension plan and a hybrid defired

contribution plan, respectively, in which the employees ofthe Municipality participate.

The Municipality is considered a participant, and not a sponsor, ofthese retirement systems since the majority
ofthe participants in the afore mentioned pension trust funds are employees ofthe Commonwealth ofPuerto
Rico and the basic financial statements ofsuch retircment systems are part of the financial reporting entity of
the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico.

Risk Managemenl

The Municipality carries commercial insurance covering casualty, theft, tort claims and other losses.

lnsurance policies arc negotiated by the Commonwealth's Depa ment of Treasury (the Department of
Treasury) on behalf of all municipalities of Puerto Rico. The Department of Treasury pays the insumnce

premiums on behalf of the Municipality and then is reimbursed each year though monthly equal payments

deducted from the Municipality's gross property tax collections made by the Municipal Revenue Collection
Center ("CRM", by its Spanish acronyms), a govemmental entity responsible for billing and collecting
property ta.\es on behalfofall municipalities of Puerto fuco.

o)

p)

q)
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The Municipality carries insurance coverage for death and bodily injuries caused by automobile accidents.

This insurance is obtained through the Automobile Accidents Compensation Administration (ACAA), a
component unit ofthe Commonwealth. This insumnce is compulsory for all licensed vehicles used on public
roads and highways in Puerto fuco. The annual premium is $35 per licensed motor vehicle, which is paid

directly to ACAA.

The Municipality obtains workers' compensation insurance covemge through the State lnsumnce Fund

Corporation (SIFC), a component unit ofthe Commonwealth. This insurance covers workers against injuries,
disability or death because of work or employment-related accidents, or because of illness suffered as a
consequence oftheh employment. Workers' compensation insumnce premiums are also paid through monthly
deductions made by CRIM ftom the Municipality's gross property tax collections.

The Municipality obtains unemployment compedsation, non-occupational disability, and drivers' insurance

coverage for its employees through various insurance progBms administered by the Commonwealth's
Department of Labor and Human Resources (DOL). These insurance progmrns cover workers against

unemployment and provide supplementary insurance coverage for temporary disability, or death because of
work or employment-related accidents or because of illness suffered as a consequence of their employment.

Unemployment compensation, non-occupational disability and drivers' insurance premiums are paid directly
to DOL on a cost reimbursement basis.

The Municipality also obtains medical insurance coverage from several health insurance companies for its
employees. Different health insumnce coverage and premium options are negotiated each year by the

Department ofTreasury on behalf ofthe Municipality. The curent insumnce policies have not been canceled

or terminated at June 30, 2010.

r) R€seflations offund Balences

Reservations offund balances represent portions of fund balances in the GFFS that are legally segregated for
specific future uses or are not appropriated for expenditure. The Municipality has recorded the following

E?es of reservations of fund balances in the GFFS:

Encumbratrces - Represent reservations of fund balances for comm;tments related to unperformed

(€xecutory) contncts for goods or services (future expenditures under puchase orders, contmcts and

other commitments). These committed arnounts represent reservations of unexPired appropriations and

generally will become liabilities in future fiscal yea.s as the goods or services are received.

Debt service - Represent fund balances available to cover future debt service payments (principal and

inte.est) on bonds payable, which arc accounted for in the debt service fund.

Capitsl assets and projects represent the rcservation of financial resources to be used for the

acquisition, construction or improvement of capital assets under contmcts and other commitments.

Other Represent financial resources set aside for use in federal and state Srant Progmrns.
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2. Credir Risk

The following is essential information about credit risk, interest rate sk, custodial ffedit risk, and foreign
exchange exposure of deposits and investments ofthe Municipality at June 30, 2010:

Credit risk this is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investrnent will not fulfill its

obligations. [n compliance with the laws and regulations of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, the

Municipality has adopted, as its custodial credit risk policy, the Statefiefit of Ut ifom lnvesment
Guidelines for lhe Municipalities of the Conmonweahh of Puerto Rico, issued by the Govemment
Development Bank for Puerto ,Rrco. Accordingly, the Municipality is only allowed to invest in
obligations of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, obligations of the United States of America
certificates of deposit, commercial paper, bankers' acceptances or in pools of obligations of the

Municipalities of Puerto Rico, which are managed by GDB. According to the aforementioned investment

guidelines, the Municipality is not allowed to invest in marketable securities or any other O?e of
investments (debt securities) for which c.edit risk exposure may be significant. Consequently, at June 30,

2010 and for the fiscal year then ended, the Municipality invested only in certificates of deposit in

commercial banks, which are insurcd by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC), generally up

to a maximum of$250,000 per depositor. No investments in debt ofequity securities were made during
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010. Th€refore, the Municipality's management has concluded that the

credit risk related to any possible loss related to defaults by commercial banks on the Municipality's
deposits is considered low at June 30, 2010.

I!!9f9!!g!g_&I - This is the risk that changes in interest rates of debt investments will adversely affect
the fair value ofan investrnent. The Municipality manages its exposure to declines in fail values by: (1)

not including debt or equity investments in its investrnents portfolio at June 30, 2010, (2) limiting the
weighted avemge matudty of its investments in certiflcates ofdeposit to periods of three months or less

and (3) keeping most of its banks deposits and certificates of deposit in interest bearing accounts

generating interest at prevailing market rates as required by the Statemenl oJ U iJom Investment

Guidelines for lhe Municipalities of the Comttofirlealth of Puerto Nco, issued by the Govemmenl

De,relopment Bank for Puerto Rr'co (the adopted policy of the Municipality). At June 30, 2010, the

interest mte risk associated with the Municipality's cash and cash equivalent is considered Iow since the

investrnent portfolio of the Municipality consists of certificates of deposit and do not include debt

secu ties or any q?e of investments that could be affected by changes in interest mtes.

Custodial credit risk In the case of deposits, this is the risk that in the event ofa bar* failure, the

Municipaliry's deposits may not be recovered. Pursuant to the ,Slarenerrt ol Invest ent Guidelines for the

Govemment oJ the Co monwealth of Puerto -Rfuo, the balances deposited in commercial banks by the

Municipality are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corpoiation (FDIC), generally up to a

m&rimum of $250,000 per depositor. In addition, public funds deposited in commercial banks by the

Municipality are fully collaleralized for the amounts deposited in excess of the federal depository

insurance- AII securities pledged as collateral are held in the Municipality's name by the agents of the

Commonwealth's Secretary of Treasury. Deposits ofGDB, are uninsued and uncollateralized. However,

no losses related to defaults by GDB on deposit transactions have been incurred by the Municipality

through June 30,2010. It is management's policy to only maintain deposits in banks affiliated to FDIC to

minimize the custodial credit rish except for GDB.
4l



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MI]I\ICIPALITY OF COROZAL
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010
(continued)

Therefore, the Municipality's management has concluded that at June 30, 2010, the custodial credit risk
associated with the Municipality's cash and cash equivalents is considered low.

Foreisn exchatrge risk,This is the risk that changes in exchange rates will adversely affect the value of
an investment or a deposit. According to the aforementioned investment guidelines, adopted by the
Municipality, the Municipality is prevented from investing in foreign securities or any other types of
investrnents for which foreign exchange risk exposure may be significant. Accordingly, management has

concluded that the foreign exchange risk related to the Municipality's deposits is considered low at June

30,2010.

Property Taxes

The personal propefiy tax is selfassessed by the taxpayer on a retum which is to be filed by May 15 of each
year with the CRIM, a govemmental entity created by the govemment ofPuerto Rico as part ofthe Municipal
Govemmental Autonomy Laws ofAugust 1991. Real property ta.x is assessed by the CRIM on each piece of
real estate and on each building.

The assessment is made as ofJanuary I ofeach year and is based on curent values for personal property and

on estimated values as of 1957 for real property tax. The tax on perconal pmperty must be paid in full together
with the retum by May 15. The tax on real property may be paid in two installments by July I and January l.
The CNM is responsible for th€ billing and collections ofreal and personal property taxes on behalf of all the

municipalities of Puerto Rico. Prior to the beginning of each fiscal year, the CRM informs the Municipality
ofthe estimated amount of property ta\ expected to be collected for the ensuing fiscal year. Thrcughout the

year, the CRM advances funds to the Municipality based on the initial estimated collections. The CRIM is
required by law to preparc a settlement statement on a fiscal year basis, whereby a comparison is made

b€tween the amounts advanced to the Municipality and amounts actually collected liom taxpayers. This

settlement has to be completed on a preliminary basis not later than tkee months after fiscal year-eIld, and a

final seftlement made not Iater than six months after year-end. If the CRIM remits to the Municipality
propefy tax advances, which are less than the tax actually collected, a receivable fiom the CRM is recorded

at June 30. However, if advances exceed the amounl actually collected by the CRIM, a deferred rcvenue is

recorded at June 30.

On January 26, 2000, Public Law 42 was enacted \rr'hich authorized the CRM to obtain a loan up to $200

million, and for a telm not exceeding 10 years, to allow for the financing ofthe debt that the Municipalities of
Puerto Rico have with the CRIM arising from futal settlements of property tax advances compared to actual

collections through fiscal year 1999-2000. The amounts that the Municipalities will collect from the

additional property ta-xes resulting fiom the increases in the subsidy from the Central Govemment to the

Municipalities are assigled through this law to rcpay such loan. The increase in this subsidy was the result of
the Public Law 238, enacted on August 15, 1999.
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On December 3,2002, the Municipality entered into an agreement wilh the Commonwealth of Puerto fuco
for the repayment of excess property tax advances determined in $1,133,772. As ofJune 30, 2010, the

related unpaid Foperty tax advances presented in the statement of net assets amounted to $1,007,986 and is

payable in periodic installments as determined by the CRIM in a 30 yea.s period until July l, 2032, at

variable interest rate (Law 42 of2000 as ammended by law 146 of2001).

Residential real property occupied by its owner is exempt by law from the payment of property ta.xes on the

first $15,000 of the assessed value. For such exempted amounts, the Pueno Rico Treasury Department

assumes payment ofthe basic tax to the Municipalities, exc€pt for Property assessed at less than $3,500 for
which no payment is made. As part of the Municipal Autonomous Law of 1991, the exempt amount to be

paid by the Puerto Rico Treasury Departrnent to the Municipalities was Iiozen as of January l, 1992. In

addition, the law grants a tax exemption fiom the payment of personal property taxes of up to $50,000 of the

assessed value to retailers having annual net sales of less than $150,000.

The annual tax mte for fiscal year 2009-10 is 9.83% for real property and 7.83% for pe$onal property of
which 1.03% of both tax mtes are for the redemption ofpublic debt issued by the Commonwealth of Puerto

Rico. The remaining percentage is distdbuted as follows: (a) 8.80% and 6 80%, respectively, rcpresents

the Municipality's basic property tax rate which is appropriated for basics and accounted fol in the general

fund. A portion of such amount is deposited in an equalization fund together with a percentage of the net

rcvenues of the Puerto Rico electonic lottery and a subsidy from the Commonwealtl of Puerto fuco. From

such fund, a distribution is made to all municipalities; (b) l.670z reprcsents the ad valorcm tax restncted for
debt service and accounted for in th€ debt service fund. The Commonwealth also contributes an annual tax

rate of0.2% ofthe Property tax collected and such amount is accounted for similar to item (a) above.

Municipal Licens€ Taxes

The Municipality is authorized to impose and collect municipal license taxes to any natural or legal p€rson

having trade or business activities within the territory of COROZAL. This is a self-assessed tax generally

based on the business volume of taxpayers, measured by Sross revenues. The Municigality establishes the

applicable tax rates. At June 30, 2010, the municipal license tax rates imposed by the Municipality were 1 50

percent for financial institutions and 0.50 percent for otber q?es oftaxpayers.

Each taxpayer must assess the coresponding municipal license tax by declaring the volume of business

through a ta.\ retum to be filed every April I 5, based on the acoal volume of business (revenues) 8en€rated in

the pieceding calendar year. Taxpayers with a sales volume of $l million or more ,nust include audited

financial statements with their tax retum filings. The tax can be paid by the taxpayer in two equal installments

due on July 15 and January 15, subsequent to the filing ofthe declaration on April 15. The first installment of
the tax covers the six-month period ended December 31, subsequent to the filing date of the declamtion,

while the second installment ofthe tax covers the six-month period ended June 30 ofthe subsequent calendar

year. [fa taxpayer elects to pay the tax in full on the filing date ofthe declaration (generally April 15), a 5

percent discount is granted automatically on the total t&x amount due. Municipal license tax rcvenues for the

fiscal year ended June 30, 20 I 0 amounted to $ I ,056,488 in the accompanying financial statements.

43



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
IVITINICIPALITY OF COROZAL
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
Fiscal Year Ended June 3Q 2010
(contirued)

Any municipal license taxes collected in advance (that is, pertaining to a future fiscal year) are rccorded as

deferred revenues. Unemned municipal license tax revenues recorded in the accompanying GWIS and GFFS

amounted to $773,997 at June 30, 2010. This amount represents the municipal license ta-\es cofiesponding to
fiscal year ending June 30,2010 that were collected in advance during the last quarter of the current fiscal
year, as required by law.

S. Srles and Us€ Taxes

The Municipality imposes a sales and use ta,\ pu$uant to the provisions of the Puerto Rico Intemal
Rsvenue Code, as amended. The tat consists of one percent (1.0%) on the sales pdce of taxable

items or on the purchase prices of all usage, stomge, or consumplion of tanable items, excluding
wholesales. The sales and use tax is a self-assessed ta\ collected by the Municipality tbrough
monthly tax retums due on the twentieth day ofthe immediate following month. The tax retums are

filed by the respective businesses that are required by law to withhold the tax from consumers on

each taxable product or service. Sales and use ta\ revenues amounted to $1,027,418 for the fiscal year

ended June 30.2010.

The commonwealth of Puerto Rico imposes a separate state sales and use tax of 0.5%, which is imposed and

collected by the Puerto Rico Treasury Department through monthly ta! retum due on the twentieth day ofthe
immediate following month. This 0.5% tax is administered by the Govemment Development Bank of Puerto

Rico for the following purposes: (1) 0.2% is deposited inthenew "MunicipalDebt Service Fund", strictly for
gmnting loans to the municipalities of Puerto Rico; (2) 0.2% for the creation ofthe "Municipal Development
Fund" percentage, which will be distributed among all municipalities pursuant to a statutory formula; and (3)

0.1%, for the creation of the "Permanent Improvements Fund", to be distributed by the Legislature of the

Commonwealth of Puerto Rico to carry out public works and permanent imprcvement projects in the

municipalities of Puerto fu co.

6. lntergovemmeDtal Receivables alrd Payables

a. Due from other governments - in the general fund principally consist of the amounts due from the

Puerto Rico Electric Power Authority ('PREPA") $1,171,000. This represents the amount resulting

from the revenues the Municipality is entitled to receive in lieu of payment of ta(es; and $ I 50,000

due from Puerto Rico Govemment for rcimbu$ement of employee beneftts.

b. Due from other govemment- in the other govemmental funds are the following:

U.S. Department ofJustice (JAC - ARRA) S 62,402

Commonwealth of PR- Elderly Commission 52,914

Commonwealth of PR- Depafiment oflabor (Law 52 ) l6E,8l2
Commonwealth of PR - Community Development Progmm 38.438

s 322.566
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c. Due to other governmental u ts ofthe general fund for services rendered to the Municipality

consists of the following:

PR Electric Power Authority
Municipal Revenue Collection Center

PR General Sen ices Admini'lralion
PR Sewer and Sanitary Authority
PR Treasury Department

7. Inter-futrdTransactions

lnter- imd - receivables and payables at June 30, 2010 arc summarized as follows:

FUN'D

General

Other Govemmental
Joint Resolutions

Capital Project
Total

DUE FROM

$1,340,127
25',7,032

307,19r

$1,171,000
7,345
4,1',71

28,',l89
2.080

$1.213.385

DUE TO

$ 564,223

46t,342

878.785

$ 1-904.350$1.904.350

Inter-fund receivables and payables represent the pending settlements of the aforementioned transfers.

which are considered by management to be fully realizable at June 30, 2010

8. Deferred Revenues

Deferred revenues recorded in the accompanying GWFS and the GFFS arc as lbllows:

A. General Fund:

Deferred revenue of $773,997 in the general firnd is related to municipal license tax collected

in fiscal year 2009-2010 that will be eamed in fiscal year 2010-2011.
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Program Description
Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers

FEMA
HOPWA
Federal Ag culture
Homeless Prevention
Total

b. Other Govemmental funds:

Federal Govem etrt The deferred rcvenues presented in other govemmental funds
represent the poftion of federal grants received for which qualirying expenditures have not
been incurred. Deferred revenues ftom the fedeml govemment are as follows:

$r37,973
47,762

8,268

r 1,512

51.900

9. Long-Term Obligations

a) The general long-term debt activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010 is as follows:

Beginning
Balance

Bonds payable $7,055,000
Noles payable 735,000
Advances CRllVl Law 42 1,028,257
Advances CRI[,] - Law 146 255.012
Advances CRIM -other 53,881
Loan PR Treasury Oept. 10,925
US Dep. ofAgriculture 510.000

9,648,075

Legalclaims 500,000
Compensated absences -a05E l0E5

s12.206.760

Borrowings Payments
or or
Addition Deduction

$4,225,000 $280,000
30,000
20'271
11,087
20,610
'10,925

510.000
4225,OOO 882,893

150,000
117.835

$4225000 $1.150.728

Ending
Balance

$11,000,000
705,000

1,007,986
243,925

33,271-

12,9€0,142

350,000
1.940.850

$15.281.032

Due within
One year

$405,000
35,000
21,545
11,087
21,454_

494,486

150,000
150.000

$794.486

Historically, the general fund has be€n used to liquidate cenain notes payable, compensated absences, fedeml

cost disallowances and any other long-term liabilities other than bonds.
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b) Boods Payable

The Municipality issues general obligation, special obligation and public improvement bonds to finance the

acquisition, construction and improvement of capital assets, as well as, to finance certain operating needs,

including the pa).rnent to suppliers in certain circumstances

The laws and rcgulations of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico provide that the Municipality's public debt

will constiture a first claim on the available revenue ofthe Municipality. Public debt includes bonds and bond

anticipation notes. The good faith, credit and taxing Power of the Municipality are inevocably pledged for the

prompt payment of the principal and interest ofbonds-

For financial rcporting purposes, the outstanding balances ofbonds represent the total principal to be repaid.

Bonds payable is composed as follows at June 30, 2010:
Outstadding

Arnount

GelergllDligsdss-Eesd!:
$1,310,000 - 2002 serial bonds due in annual installments

Of$20,000 to $115,000, thiough July l, 2026;

with intercst ranging fio n 2.'7o/. to 5.6yo $ 1,100,000

$1,310,000 - 2008 municipal geneml obligation bonds

Due in annual installments of$30,000 to $90,000, through

July I, 2033; (USDA) with interest at 4.875% 1,280,000

$1,320,000 - 2002 serial bonds due ir annual installments

Of$20,000 to $t 15.000, through July l, 2026;

with interest ranging from 4]7%ro5.3l% 1,125,000

$470,000 - 2005 serial bonds due in annual installmmts

of$10,000 to $30,000, through July 1, 2029;

with interest ranging fro tn 3 .2'to/" to 5 .31yo 420,000

$2,010,000 2010 sp€cial obligation bond due in annual

Installments of $30,000 to $ 175,000 through July l, 2033

with variable interest at l.5olo over prime 1,9E0,000

$715,000 - 2006 5erial bonds due rn annual installmenls

of$90,000 to $125,000, through July 1, 201l:

with intercst ranging ftor:, 3.2'7yo to 4.62y" 235,000

47



- COMMONWEALTII OF PUERTO RICO
MT]NICIPALITY OF COROZAL
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010

- (continued)

$400,000 - special lottery tund loan payable in

quarterly installments of$10,000 to $40,000,

through July 1, 2016; with interest at 5.0%

payable from opemtional fund

Total notes payable

Total bonds and not€s payable

$805,000 - 2010 special obligation bond due in annual

hstallments of$25,000 to $85,000 through July l, 2024 with

variable interest at 1.5o% over prime with a minimum of 6.0% 805,000

$3,420,000 - 2010municipal general obligation bonds due in

annual installments of $80,000 to $315,000, through July 1, 2029

with variable interest at I .5% over prime with a minimum of 6.00lo 3,420,000

Bonds peyable from lhe General Futrd:

$305,000 - 2005 serial bonds due in annual installments

of$25,000 to $40,000, through July 1, 2014;

with interest at 5.0% 170,000

$505,000 - 2005 serial bonds due in annual installments

of$I0,000 to $40,000, through July 1,2030;

with interest at 5.0% 465.000

Total bonds payable $ 11.000.000

Notes payable - The proceeds of the issuance of notes payables were used principally to the

acquisition and improvement of major capital assets. Notes payable outstanding at June 30,

20 1 0 are as follows:
Outstanding

Amount

$510,000 - serial08-09 loan payable (USDA) in

Annual installments of$10,000 to $40,000 through

July 1,2033 with interest at4.875olo, payable liom

operational fund 500,000

205.000

705.000

s11.705.000
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va able interest rates on serial bonds are reviewed periodically by GDB and are based on the

fluctuation ofGDB's weighted average rate for its commercial paper program. Under this program,

GDB issues commercial paper: (1) in the t&xable and ta-x-exempt markets of the United States of
Americ4 (2) in the Eurodollar market, and (3) to coryorations having ta-x exemptions under the

Commonwealth's lodustrial locentiv€s Acts.

Annual debt service .equirements ofmatudty for bonds and notes payable are as follows:

Year Edding
June 30,
201t
2012
2013
20r4
2015
20t6-20
2021-25
2026-30
203t-34

Total

Pridcipal
$ 440,000

475,000
375,000
410,000

42s,000
2,280,000
3,105,000

3,080,000
1.115.000

$11.?05.000

Itrterest
$ 520,61s

696,982
67 5,46t
652,083
62',7,t99

2,731,692
t,E92,967

850,807

s8.792.938

At June 30.2010, accrued interest payable on bonds and notes amounted to $236,264, which are

recorded in the debt service fund and the statement ofnet assets.

c. Aalvatrces from- CRIML.This amount represents the balance owed to CRM at June 30, 2010

which will be repaid through a financing obtained by the CRIM with GDB, as authorized by law and as

explained in thG Note. The original debt of$1,133,772, of Law 42 and $277,186 of Law 146 is

amortized in periodic installments as scheduled below, the balance due under Law 1 46 is payable as

determined by the CRIM during a 30 years period until July 1,2032, LIMS balance is payable until
2012, with variable interest rate.
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Annual debt service requirements to maturity for Advances from CRIM are due as follows:

Year Etrding
Jutre 30,
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
20t6-20
2021-25
2026-30
2031-33

Total

LIMS
Principal
$21,854

1t,417

Law 1,16

Principal
s 11,087

11,087
11,087
1 1,087
1 1,087
55,435
55,435
55,435
22.t85

$243,925

Law 42
Principal
$ 2 r,54s

22,899
24,337
25,866
27,492

165,644
224,647
304,665
190.891

s1.007,986

Inter€st
$ 78,874

75,509
'73,04t

70,823
68,508

304,004
22',7,762

130,502
20.t45

$1,049,168$33,271

d. Comp€nseted absences The govemment-wide statement ofnet assets includes $1,940,850 of
accrued sick leave benefits and accrued vacation benefits and related employer palroll cost,

representing the Municipality's commitment to fund such costs fiom future opemtions-

NOTE 10. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital assets; those with an estimated useful live of hve years or more from the time of acquisition by

the Municipaliry and a cost of $500 or more, are primarily tunded tkough the issuance of long-term

bonds and ioans. A summary of capital assets and changes occurring in current year, including rhose

changes for infrastucture and construction in-progress pursuant to the implementation of GASB

StatementNo.34, follows. Land and construction in progress are not subject to depreciation:
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Capital assets activity for the fiscal year ended June 30 , 2010

Governmental Activitid:

Capit l assel rct b€ing deprecialed:

Consituction in prcgress

Toral capilal 6ets not being dep.eci€red

Capital asts. beisg depeciared:

Buildines and buildinS imprcvements

Sile improvdents

Equipment

Toral capital 6s€ts being depreciated

Less ecurnula&d depeiation for:

Buildines ad building improvenenb

Site improv enB

Equipmmt

Total @mulared de.rmiation

Torat epital asts being dep.siated,.ei

Gov€mm.ntal ..tiviti€s crpital a3sets, n.i

Busirs Type Actiuty:

Ca?ital asse! nol b€irg depreciated:

Led

Capiial sets. being depEiated:
B ldings ard building improvemenls

Toral capitzl ass€ts being deprecialed

t s ac.mula,ted depreciaiion for:

BuildinCs and building improvemetus

Toial dmulEred dep@iation

Toral @pital 6s€ts being deprsiared" net

BBitres Typ. A.liviry Crpitll $3.6, ..r

Totll Municipalit Clpit l lssets, nel

Balanc. Addiliotrs

Jun. 2009 (RetiEmenrs)

s 10,744.569

1.3t5,780 2.548.687

12,060.349 2,548,687

14.907,497 203,052

2.424.376 7,000

t0,086.828 397,816

1,054,890 (100,254)

6,t55,595 (33,997)

38,629,186 473.617

5.01E,161 376,397

873,870 70.614

4,602,554 t,273,521

682,24) (100.31?)

4,665.412 (265,499)

15,842,240 1,354,716

22,786,946 (881,099)

! !4q!l!9r !___!667$q

June 2010

s 10,744,569

3.861.167

14,609.036

l9,t 10.549

2,431,316

10,484,644

954,636

6,121.598

39-102,803

5.394,558

944,484

5.876,075

581,926

4,399,913

t7.t96,956

21,905,647

! !!J!,q!1

- $ 444.367

5.533.562

249.600

I l7-180

5.900.3:12

t.to6.7 t2
249,t30

1,437,66E

4.462-4',11

l 1f!!i1!

s 41.42t,72!

$ 44.r.167

5.5i3.562

253-749

I I7.lE0

5.904.491

996.041

252.857

70.308

1.319.206

,1.585.285

! l!?2{z

! !9.!l0t!t

-51-

(4,r4;)

(4.r49)

110,671

(3.727)

I1.7t8
118.662

(122,E11)

!_1,L4!9

$ L;4!11
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ll. Employees' Retirement Systems

The Employees' Retirement System of the Commonwealth and its Instrumentalities (the Retirement

System) is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan sponsored by, and reported as

a component unit ofthe Commonwealth ofPuerto Rico. All regular employees ofthe Municipality under

55 years ofage at the date of emplolment become members ofthe Retirement System as a condition to
their employment.

The Retirement System provides retirement, death and disability benefits pursuant to legislation enacted

by the Commonwealth's legislature. Disability retirement benefils are available to members for
occupational and non-occupational disabilities. Retirement benefits depend upon age at retirement and

the number of years of creditable service. Benefits vest after ten years of plan particiPation.

Members who have attained 55 years ofage and have completed at least 25 years ofcreditable service or
members who have attained 58 years of age and have completed ten years of creditable service are

entitled to an annual benefit payable monthly for life.

The amount of the annuity shall be one and one-half percent ofthe average compensation, as defined,

multiplied by the number of years of deditable service uP to twenty years, plus two percent of the

avemge compensation, as defined, multiplied by the number of years ofcreditable service in excess of
20 years. In no case will the annuity b€ less than $200 per month.

Participants who have completed at least 30 years of creditable service are entitled to receive the Merit
Annuity. Participants who have not attained 55 years of age will receive 65 percent of the avemge

compensation, as defined; otherwise they will receive 75 percent of the average compensation, as

defined. No benefits are payab)e if the participant receives a refund of his /her accumulated

contributions-

Commonwealth legislation requires employees to contribute 5.775% for the first $550 of their monthly
gross salary and 8.275% for the excess over $550 of monthly gross salary' The Municipality is required

by the same statute to contribute 9.275% ofth€ participant's goss salary. Total contributions during the

year ended June 30, 2010 amounted to $376,923.

On September 24, 1999, an amendment to Act No. 447 of May 15, 1951, which created the Retirement

System, was enacted with the purpose ofestablishing a new pension program (System 2000). Employees

participating in the curent system as of December 3 1 , I 999, may elect to stay in the defined benefit plan

or tmnsfer to the new progxam. Personsjoining the Municipality on or after January l, 2000, will only be

allowed to become members ofsystem 2000. System 2000 will reduce th€ retirement age from 65 years

to 60 for those employees who joined the current plan on or after April I , 1990.
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System 2000 is a hyb d defined contribution plarL also known as a cash balance plan. Under this new
plan, there will be a pool of pension assets, which will be invested by ERS, together with those of the
current defined benefit plan. The Commonwealth ofPuerto Rico will not guarantee benefits at retiremelt
age. The annuity will be based on a formula which assumes that each year the employee's contribution
(with a minimLrm of 8.2'750/. of the employee's salary up to a maximum of 10%) will be invested in
an account which will either: (1) eam a fixed rate based on the two-year Constant Maturity Treasury

Note or, (2) earn a rate equal to 75olo ofthe retum ofthe ERS'S investment portfolio (net ofmanagement
fees)l or (3) earn a combination of both altematives. Participants will receive periodic account statements

similar to those of defined contribution plans showing their accrued balances. Disability pensions will
not be granted under System 2000. The employers' cortribution (9.275% ofthe employee's salary) will
be used to fund the current plan.

Additional information on the Retircment System is provided in its financial statements for the year

ended June 30, 2010, a copy of which can be obtained fiom the Retirement System, Minillas Statiorl
P.O. Box 42005, San Juan, PR 00940.

12. Commitments and Contingencies

The Municipality is defendant in various legal proceedings pertaining to matters incidental to the
performance of routine govemmental operations. Under Public Act No. 104 of June 25, 1955, as

amended, persons are authorized to sue the Municipality only for causes of actions set forth in said Act
to a ma-ximum amount of $75,000 or $150,000 if it involves actions for damages to more than one

person or where a single injured party is entitled to seveml causes ofaction. It is management's opinion,
based on the advice ofthe legal counsel, that the potential claims against the Municipality not covered

by insurance will not materially affect the financial condition of the Municipality.

The Municipality has reported, outstanding encumbrances arnounting to $299,668 in the general fund at

June 30,2010. The Municipaliry intends to honor these encumbrances, which will continue to be

liquidated under the current year's budget during a lapse period that extends into the subsequent fiscal
year.

The Municipality has outstanding constuction project commitrnents amounting to approximately
$9,200,000 at June 30, 2010 for the construction and or improvement of the Convention Center, Casa

Loydi, Recreational Facilities, lnfrastucture and other construction prcjects.
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The Municipality receives financial assistance fiom the federal Govemments of the United States of
America and the Commonwealth in the form of grants and entitlements. Receipt of grants is generally

conditioned upon compliance with terms and conditions of the grant ageemelts and applicable federal

laws and .egulations, including the €xpenditure of resources for eligible purposes. Accordingly,

expenditures financed by these progams are subject to financial and compliance audits by the appropdate

grantor. Disallowance as a r€sult ofthese audits may become liabilfties ofthe Municipality.

The Municipality leases real ploperty, buildirgs, vehicles and equipment under several opemting lease

agreements, which g€nerally have terms of one year or less and are automatically renewed for the same

terms. Rental expenditures recorded in the general fuld and in other govemmental funds for the year

ended June 30, 2010, amounted to $58,627. Management believes that the summary of the futule

minimum rental commitments under non cancelable real property and equipment lease with terms

exceeding one year is not significant.
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GENERAL FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDEO JUNE 30,2()1O

RESOURCES (inflows):

Property Taxes
Volume of Business Taxes
Government of P.R. Contributions
Contfbutions in liew of taxes
Sale and use tax
Construction Tax
Charge for services
Rent
lnterest
Other

Amounts available for appropriations

CHARGES TO APPROPRIATIONS (out flows):
[,IunicipalConcil
Mayor office
Finance
Public work
Health
Emergency management
lvlunicipal Police
Personnel
Spods and recreation
Sanitation
Elderly Centers
lvlunicipal Secretary
Public Relations
lntemal Auditor
Purchases Department
Planning and Development
Vice-l\4ayor
Citizen Help
Historical Turistic Center of Cibuco
Recicling

Total charges to appropriations

Excess (deficiency) resources over charges

BUDGETEO AMOUNTS

ORIGINAL FINAL
ACTUAL

AMOUNTS

$ 1,879,727
1,039,213
5,376,270
1,171,000

936,748
243,010
223,493
187,234
225,427

82,240

$ 1,879,727
1,100,000
5,264,139
1,171,000
1,000,000

340,000
228,500
125,000
'175,000

63,000

$ 1,879,727
1,100,000
5,264,139
1,171,000
1,000,000

340,000
228,500
125,000
175,000
63,000

11,346,366 11,346,366 11,364,362

154,058 154,0s8 111,109
579,918 666,035 659,353

3,699,014 4,841,058 4,806,726
2.191.017 1.873,501 1,869,114
472,653 458,353 458,331
431,608 250,585 248,993
569,607 44Ai28 447,964
156,586 91,991 91,840
4s6,770 427,731 425.638

1.243.875 1.038,086 1,037,169
174,155 148,818 147.346
131,137 81,867 81,699
136,869 205,669 205,168
90,581 67,211 67,085

118,597 9'1,857 91,686
58,839 49,534 49.415

63.048 14,775 ',14,539

182,361 152,761 ',150,873

363.878 293,801 292,296
71.795 65.547 65.228

VARIAIICE WTH
FINAL BUDGET
Positive{Neoative)

$
(60,787)
112,131

(63,252',)

(96.s90)
(5,007)
62,234
50,427
19,240

42,949
6,682

34,332
4,387

22
1,592

1U
'151

2,093

1,472
168
501

171

119

1,888
1,505

319

'11.346.366 11.421.366 11,321,572 99,794

$ -$ (75,000) $ 42.790 $ 117.790

The accompanying notes are integral part of the financial statements
See audito/s report.
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BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
OEBT SERVICE FUND

FOR TI{E YEAR ENOED JUNE 30, 2O1O

BUDGETED AMOUNTS

ORIGINAL FINAL

VARIANCE WTH
ACTUAL FINAL BUOGET

AMOUNTS Positive{Neoativel

RESOURCES (inflows):

Property Taxes

Sales Taxes (lVU)

lnterest

Other

Amounts available for appropriations

CHARGES TO APPROPRIATIONS (outflows):

Long term loan amortization

lnterest on long term debt

Transfer of interest earned to General Fund

Other - reserve

Total charges to approprjatjons

Excess (deficiency) resources over charges

$ 846,188 $ 846,188 $ 570,755

382,204

1,059

$ (275,433)

382,204

1,059

846,'188 846,'188 954,018 '107,830

225,000

205.710

415,478

846,188

225.000

205.7't0

255,000

361,114

1,060

(30,000)

(15s,404)

(1,060)

415,474

229,O14

415,478

846,'188 617,174

s i!9 811 $ qlo.qt

The accompanying notes are integral part of the flnancial statements.
See aldito/s report.
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NOTES TO BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCMDULE
YEAR ENDED JUNf, 30, 2O1O

NOTE 1. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCf, AND ACCOI]NIABILITY

A. Budgetaay Cotrtrol

The Municipality's annual budget is pr€pared on the budgetary basis ofaccounting, which is not
in accordance with GAAP, and represents departrnental appropriations recommended by the
Mayor and approved by the Municipal Legislature prior to the beginning of the fiscal -year.
Amendments to tie budget require the approval of the Municipal Legislature. Transfers of
appropriations within the budget, kflown as Mayor's ResolutioN, do not requirc the approval of
the Municipal Legislature.

The Municipality prepares its annual budget including the operations ofthe general firnd.

For budgetary puposes, encumbrance accounting is used. The encumbrances (i.e., purchase
orders, contracts) arc conside.ed expenditures when incurred. . For GAAP reporting purposes,
encumbrances outstanding at year-end are reported as reservations of fund balances and do not
constitute expenditures or liabilities because the commitments will be honored during the
subsequent year,

The unencumbered balance of any appropriation at the end ofthe fiscal year will lapse at the end
of such fiscal year. Other appropriations, mainly capital project appropriations, are continuing
accounts for which the Municipal Legislatue has authorized that arl unspent balance fiom the
prior year be carried forward and made available for cunent spending.

The budgeted deficiency of$75,000 considered the utilization ofprior year fund balances.
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COMMONWEALTII OF PTIERTO RICO
MI]NICIPALITY OF COROZAL

Notes to the
Schedule of Expenditures ofFederal Awards

June 30, 2010

NOTE 1 - GENERAL

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditues of Federal Awards includes the federal grant activity of the
Municipality of COROZAL of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico and is presented on the accrual basis of
accounting. The Municipality ofCOROZAL reporting entiry is defined in Note I to the Municipality,s basic
financial statements. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of
OMB Circularl-1JJ, Audits of States, Local Govemments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Therefore, some
amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts presented in the basic financial statements.

NOTE 2 . REINTIONSHIP TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATf,MENTS

Fedelal financial assistance revenues and expenditures are reported in the Municipality's general-
purpose financial statements as other govemmental funds and capital project fund under the accrual
basis of accounting. Expenditures in the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards are
presented in the cash basis of accounting.

NOTE J. FEDERAL CFDA NUMBIR

The CFDA number included in this schedule were determined based on the progmm name,
review of grant contact information and the Office of Management and Budget's Catalog of
Fedeml Domestic Assistance.
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JUAN A. RIVERA, CPA
CERTIFIED PTJBLIC ACCOT'NTANT

PnuE: W-7E+2255
Ed: 7a7-78+?,50

Enaill jm.le.io@hodeiljm

UE8 IEYTflOWN IA|A DET YAII.E AW 7'OA DA}' ?R N%9

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCUL STATEMENTS

PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WTM GOWRNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Honorable Mayor and

the Mmicipal Assembly
Municipality of Corozal
Corozal, Puerto Rim

We have audited the financial statements of the govemmental activities, each major fund and the aggegate

remaining fund information ofthe Municipality of Corozal as of and for the year ended June 30, 2010, which

collectively comprise the Municipality of Corozal basic financial statements and have issued our rcport

thereon dated December 17, 2010. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing stadards generally

acaepted in United States of America and the st2ndards applicable to financial audits contained in

Go.remment Auditing Standqrds, issued by the Comptroller G€neral oflhe United States

Intenral Cotrtrol over Financial Reportins

In plaming ard performing our audit, we considercd Municipality of Corozal intemal contml over financial

reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose for the purpose of expressing our

opinions ofthe financial stat€ments but not for the purpose ofexpressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Municipality of Corozal intemal confol over fmancial reporling.

Our consideration of intemal coflaol over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the

preceding paragmph and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in intemal control over financial

ieporting that might be significant deficiencies ff material weaknesses. However, as discussed trclow we

identifi* cerain deficiencies in intemal control over financial reporting that we consider to be significant

deficiencies.

A control deficiency exists when the design or op€ration of a contol does not allow management or

employees in the nomal cou$e of pedorming thei assigned functions, to Prevent or detect misstatements on

a timely basis. ,a. significant deficiency is a conhol deficiency, or combination of contol deficiencies, that

aaversely affecs the Municipality of Corozal ability to initiate, authorize, record process or report financial

dara reliably in accondanc€ with generally accepted accounting principles such that ther€ is more than a

rcmote likeiihood that a misstatement ofthe Municipality of Corozal financial statemenb that is more than

inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by Municipality of coozal intemal control. we consider

the deficiencies described in the accompanying schedule of intmral control over financial reporting. (2010-1)

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that rcsults in

more than a rcmote likelihood that a material misstatement ofthe financial statements will not be prevented

or detected by tle Municipality ofcorozal intemal control.

Our considemtion of the in&mal control over fmaacial reporting was for the limited purpose describe in the

first paEgraph of this section and would not necessarily identi& all deficiencies in the intemal control tlEt
might be;ignificant deficiencies and accordingly would not necessarily disclose all significant deficiencies

lrbilrE A.ldrula Bor 757, tlor.do, PR 00646



that are also considercd to be material weaknesses. However we believe that none of lhe significant
deficiencies described above is a material wealoess.

Compliance

As part of obtaining rcasonable assumrce about whether the Muicipality of Coro?al financial statements are
fiee of material misstatemen! we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of lawq
regulationq contmcts, and gants, noncompliance with which could have a dircct ard material effect on the
determination of financial slatements amounts. However, providing ald opinion on compliaace with those
prcvisions was not all objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such as an opinion. The
rcsults of our tests disclosed instanc€s of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be rcported
undef, Goternment Auditw Standatds and which are described in the accompanying schedule of findings
and questioned costs as items (201 0- l ).

We noted certain matters that we reported to management of Municipality of Corozal in a separate letter
dated December 17,2010

Municipality of Corozal, response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the acromparying
schedule of federal lmdings and questioned costs. We did not audit Municipality of Corozal respons€ and,
accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

This report is ifiended solely for the information and use ofmanagement, ofthe Honorable Mayor and
The Municipal Assembly of Municipality of Corozal, others wi&in the entity, and federal awarding agencies
and past-though entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these
specified parties.

%$,\--^
December I 7, 20 I 0
Toa Baj4 Puerto Rim

Stmp No.257 50 of Puerto Rico Sociery of Ceflified Public Accounimts was afiixed to the Ecord copy ofrhis reporr
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JUAN A. RTVEBA, CPA
CERfi FIED PIJBLIC ACCOIJNTANT

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE
TO EACH MAIOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL

OVER COMPLANCE IN A ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCALAR A.1 33

To the Honomble Mayor and
the Municipal Assembly
Municipality of Corozal
Corozal, Puerto Rico

We have audited the compliance of Municipality of Corozal with the O?€s of complianc€ requircments
described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement
that are applicable to each of its major federal progmms for the year ended June 30, 20 I 0. The Municipality
of Corozal major federal progmms are identified in the summary of audiio/s rcsults section of the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws,
regulations, contmcts, and gmnts applicable to each of is major federal programs is the responsibility ofthe
Municipality of Corozal management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Municipality of
Corozal compliance based on our audit.

Compliance
We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards; the
standards applicable to fmancial audits contained in Govemmental Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Ieal Govemments,
and Non-Profit Organizations. Those Standards and OMB Circular A-133 requirc that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assuance about whether noncompliance with the B?es of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct ard material effect on a major fedeml progmm
occurred. An audit includes examining on a test basis, evidenc€ about the Municipality of Corozal
compliance with those requirements and performing such othen procedures as we considered necessary in
the ctcumstances. We telieve that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opidon. Our audit does not
include a legal determination ofthe Municipality ofcorozal compliarce with those rcquirements.

As described ill item Section II in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs, the
Municipality of Corozal did not comply with requirements regarding administrative requirements that are
applicable to its SBGP Progam. Compliance with such requirement is necessary for the Municipality of
Corozal to comply with the fe-deral regulations. Also we want to emphasize that this rcquirement has not been
complied in pdor yeam.

In our opinion, except for the noncompliance descdbed in the preceding paragraph, the Municipality of
Corozal complied, in all material respects, with the requircments referred to above that are applicable to each
of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2010.

Interaal Contr0l Over Compliance
The management of the Municipality of Corozal is responsible for establishiflg and maintaining effective
intemal control over compliance with the rcquirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and gmnt applicable to
federal programs. In plaming and performing our audi! we considered the Municipality of Corozal irtemal

Mallil€ AddE a Box 757, Dor.do, PR 0@t6

pbr&: 1E7-7E+2255
Fw 1E7-7U-I250

Eodt jrm.tsi@lorMi1..on

uRa lgnnowry $1a DEL vAlE AW 7'OA BAJA, pR @949



control over compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major fedeml
prcglam in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on
compliance and to test and r€port on dre intemal control over compliance in accordanc€ with OMB Circular
A-133.

We noted certain matters involving the intemal control over compliance and its operation dlat we consider to
be reportalle conditions. Reportable conditions involve matters coming to our attention rclating to
significant deficiencies in the design or opeEtion of the intemal control over complianc€ that, in our
judgment, could adversely affect the Municipality ofcorozal ability !o administer a major federal program in
accordance with the applicable requirements oflaws, regulations, contracts, ard gra s. Reportable conditions
are descdH in the accompanying schedule offindings and questioned costs in Section tr.

A material wmkness is a condition in which the design or opemtion of one or more of tie intemal conaol
components do€s not rcduce to a relatively low level the risk that noncompliance with the applicable
requircments of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants that would be material in relation to a major federal
pro$am being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal
course of performing their assigned functions. Our considemtion of the intemal control over compliance
would not necessarily disclose all matters in the intemal control ihat might be reportable conditions an4
accordingly, would not necessarily disclose all reportable conditions that are also considered to be material
weaknesses.

However, we believe that none of the rcportable cooditions described above is a material weakness. This
rcport is htended for the information ofthe audit committee, the Mllnicipality's management, the Deparhnent
of Housing and Urban Development (Cognizant Agencr, afld federal awarding agencies and pass-through
entities. However. dlis report is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these

/-specified parties,ll

ffi"l&4{
Lic.#2214 \ \

December 17,2010
Toa Baja, Puerto Rico

Slamp No. 257945 I of Pueno Rico Sociely of Cedified Public Accountets w6 aflixed to the record copy of this reporr
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MUNICIPALITY OF COROZAL
COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

SHEDULE OF FlNDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2O1O

l. Summarv ofAuditor's Resull

Financial Statements

Type ofauditois report issued: unqualified opinion

lnternal Control over financial reportjng:

Material weakness (es) identified?
Reportable condition (s) identified that are not
considered to be material weakness?

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?

Federal Awards

lnternal Contaol overmajor programs:

Material weakness (es) identjfied?
Reportable condition (s) identified that are not
Considercd to be mateaial weakness?

Yes No

No

No

X Yes

Yes

Yes

X Yes

XNo

YeS _X- No

No

Type of audito/s report issued on compliance for
major programs: qualified:

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be
reported in accodance with section 510 {a) of
CircularA-133? X Yes

ldentification of ma.jor programs:

No

CFDA Numbers

14.228
14.871

Name of Federal ProqEm or Gluster

State Block Grant Program
Housing 8 Voucher and Portability

Dollarthreshold used to distinguish between type A and type I programs: $5000,00

Audited qualified as low-risk audit? _X_ Yes No
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MUNICIPALIry OF COROZAL
COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

SHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 201O

Federal Awards Findino6 and Questioned Cost

My examination ot compliance with federal requjrements of the Municipality of Corozal, for the year
ended June 30, 2010 disclosed that grants funds were administered in a satisfactory manner, except
for the following situation:

SBGP-CFDA No. '14.228

- Condition 10-01 - Cash Management

The Voucher Program should minimize the time elapsing between transfers of federal funds from agency
(OCA[,) and disbursement to suppliers.

, Criteria

Code of Federal Regulation 24 85.21 (5) Written procedures to minimize the time elapsing between the
trasfer of funds to the recipient from the US Treasury and the issuance or redemption of checks, warants
or payments by other means for program purposes by the recipient. To the extent that the provisions of
the Cash Management lmprovement Act (CMIA) (Pub. L. 101.453) govern, payment methods of State

- agencies, instrumentalities, and fisical agents shal be consistent with CMIA Treasury State Agreements or
the C[rlA default procedures codilled at 31 CFR part 205, "Withdrawal of Cash from the Treasury for
Advances under Federal Grant and Other Program'.

Cause

- The Municipality does not make payments as soon as they receive the funds.

Effect

The Municipality does not follow the procedures established by federal laws.

Recommendation

Establish the procedures needed to disburse payments within a reasonable time after receive the funds
HUD as the Federal Regulation established.

- Auditee Response

The finance directo gave instruction to the employee in charge of this area in order to corret the issue
mentioned above.
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MUNICIPALITY OF COROZAL
COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

SHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS AND OUESTIONED COST
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2O1O

Program Findlngy'Compllance StEtrs
SBGP - CFDA No. The irunicipality did not comply with the .equirement of preparing corrected
14.228 and filling its federal financial reports on a tjmely basis. During our

examination ofthe Federal Financial Reports, we noted that the
Municipality did not send on time the quarteriy report for the
following period ended.

Quarterly Due/Date Date Submifted

July - September October30,08 November7,08
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